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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND
SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
1. For the fiscal year ended

May 31, 2014

2. SEC Identification No.

AS094-006309

3. BIR Tax Identification No. 004-451-425-000
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC.
5. Makati City, Philippines
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization

6.

(

) (SEC Use only)
Industry Classification Code:

7. 1704 Peak Tower, 107 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, Makati City, Philippines
Address of principal office
Postal Code 1227
8

(632) 753-1405
Issuer’s telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable
Former name, former, address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
10. Securities registered pursuant to Section 8 & 12 of the SRC, or Sec 4 and 8 of the
RSA
a) Authorized Capital Stock Title of Each Class
Common shares, =
P0.10 par value

12,000,000,000 shares
=
P1,200,000,000

b) Issued
Common shares, =
P0.10 par value
12,000,000,000 shares
Net of outstanding subscription receivable of
=
P348,686,975
=
P1,200,000000
c)

Amount of Debt Outstanding as of May 31, 2014
Total
=
P189,123468

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange
Yes ( / )
Stock Exchange
Class of Securities Listed

No (

)

: Philippine Stock Exchange
: Common stocks

12. Check whether the issuer:
(a) has filed all report to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder or section 11 of
the RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Section 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines
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during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports):
Yes ( / )

No ( )

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days
Yes ( / )
No ( )
13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates:
The aggregate voting stock of registrant held outside of its affiliates and/or officers and employees totaled
6,788,392,989 shares (for details please refer to the attached Schedule H of this report) while its closing
market price was at =
P0.13 per share as of May 31, 2014. The total market value of registrant’s voting stock
not held by its affiliates and/or officers and employees was computed to be =
P882,491,089.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDING
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEAR
14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code
subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the Commission.
Yes

( )

No ( / )
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe
them and identify the part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is
incorporated:
May 31, 2014 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements (incorporated as reference for Items 5, 7, 10 & 12
of SEC Form 17-A).
(a) Any annual report to security holders;
None
(b) Any information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20;
None
(c) Any prospectus filed pursuant to SCR Rule 8.1
None
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PART I – BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business
This report contains reference to Boulevard Holdings, Inc. (“BHI” or the “Registrant” or “Company” or “Group”)
and its subsidiaries, Friday’s Holdings, Inc. (“FHI”), Fridays Puerto Galera, Inc. (“FPGI”), and Crown One Land,
Inc. (“COLI”).
a.

Business Development
The Company
Boulevard Holdings, Inc.
Boulevard Holdings, Inc., established and incorporated on July 13, 1994, is a holding company with its
primary interests in the following businesses: ownership of companies involved in the development of hotels
and resorts & tourism-related businesses and investments in strategic land locations & rentable real estate
properties. BHI subsidiaries are significant market leaders in their respective market niches for their products,
catering to premiere and elite clients to maintain relatively higher profit margins. The ambition of BHI is to
expand its eminently reputable Friday’s Hotel brand to at least nine (9) different idyllic locations throughout
Asia in the following ten (10) years. The group aims to concentrate in the hospitality and leisure business as
well as to obtain lease and commission income from its management over the 3,000 hectare Puerto Azul
resort. Friday’s Beach Resorts will enhance the total operations of BHI. Our resort business will
continuously deliver exceptional quality service to its guests, which Friday’s is noted for, enhancing its
already strong repeat customer base. It will continue to improve its present facilities and increase the
number of saleable rooms.
The company has also determined to create long term value by increasing its
capitalization, entering into JV’s for tourist destination development and commanding a significant share in
the primary resort home market outside Metro Manila, especially with government decongestion efforts to
improve travel time via the new built Cavitex highway over the sea and the highway newly constructed
Ternate-Nasugbu tunnel which was completed in the 3rd quarter of 2013. The assertions from the
Philippine Government allowing foreign travellers to enter the country without visa and with extension up
to 30 days as well as the Department of Tourism (“DoT”) target of 5.5 million foreign tourists for 2013 to
double the figure by 2016 are positive indicators for the hospitality business aside from generation of
more jobs. In addition, the planned developments in the Province of Cavite to create a duty free seaport,
residential and industrial districts, and airport by some conglomerates will directly benefit shareholders
value of the Company. This vision is in line with the many urban planners calls to further develop South
and Southwest of Metro Manila. The DoT believes prospects are brighter for the tourism industry. It is
upbeat in its target of six million foreign tourist arrivals before the end of 2014. With the positive
development of the tourism industry in the Philippines it will generate fulfilling and profitable income for
Filipinos and tourism will bring our people to a richer, prouder future and better community.”
On January 19, 2010, the SEC approved the amendment to increase its capital stock from =
P200,000,000
divided into two (2) billion shares with the par value of =
P0.10 each to =
P800,000,000 divided into eight (8)
billion shares with the par value of =
P0.10 each. The issuance of six (6) billion new BHI shares was in
consideration for the acquisition of seven parcels of land, located at Ternate, Cavite with an aggregate area of
1,066,012 square meters. The properties-for-shares swap arrangement was certified by the BIR as a taxdeferred exchange under Section 40(C)(2) of the Tax Code of 1997, in a certification issued on November 27,
2009. The six (6) billion new shares were issued to JP Guilds, Inc. on February 9, 2010.
On February 28, 2012, the SEC approved to increase its capital stock from =
P800,000,000 divided into
eight (8) billion shares with the par value of =
P0.10 each to =
P1,200,000,000 divided into twelve (12) billion
shares with the par value of =
P0.10 each.
The Company filed several Notices of Exemption during the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013 with the
SEC for the issuance of the total 1,867,040,149 common shares.
5
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During the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014 BHI filed several Notices of Exemption with the SEC for the
issuance of the total 2,166,106,443 common shares in four tranches which resulted in the full subscription
of BHI authorized capital stock of 12 Billion common shares with the par value of =
P0.10 each.
The Company has investments in Friday’s Holdings, Inc., Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc., and in Crown One
Land, Inc. It owns properties at Ternate, Cavite for future site of the 3rd Friday’s hotel brand and for other
developments. Currently, BHI has property investments in several condominium units located at Asian
Mansion II Condominium, LPL Greenhills Condominium and Burgundy Corporate Tower Condominium
which are for lease and a unit at Peak Tower Condominium which is used as the corporate office of the
Registrant.
Business Segment and Subsidiaries
The Registrant and its subsidiaries in 2014 operate primarily in segments of providing world-class hotel and
resort amenities and investment holding. The hospitality and leisure business segment of concentration of
the Group comes from Friday’s Holdings, Inc., owner and operator of Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort
in Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan, Crown One Land, Inc., and Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc. which will serve
as the future site of Friday’s Puerto Galera Beach Resort to replicate the success of the original Friday’s
Beach Resort in Boracay.
Friday’s Holdings, Inc.
FHI is the owner and operator of Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort (“FBBR”) in Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan.
FBBR, established in 1989, is a pioneer AAA accredited luxury resort in the island with 41 native cottagestyled rooms and 11-room villa as of May 31, 2014. It has a 120 seat capacity restaurant that offers Asian,
European, fusion and Filipino cuisine. FBBR, the leading resort hotel in Boracay, is set within an almost
secluded beachfront area, which is considered to be one of the finest, widest and cleanest on the island. FHI
is a favorite beach destination of local and foreign tourists. It offers excellent food and beverage selections
and is famous for its ultra fine, powdery white beach and clear blue sea.
The primary purpose for which the said corporation is formed is to act as manager or managing agents of
persons, firms, associations, corporations, partnerships and other entities; to provide management, investment
and technical advice for commercial, industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises; and to
undertake, carry on, assist or participate in the promotion, organization, management, liquidation or
reorganization of the corporations, partnerships and other entities, except the management of funds,
securities, portfolio or similar assets of the managed entities or corporations.
On February 14, 2014, a dispute arose between FHI and the heir of a lessor regarding the possession of the
land where the resort is located. FHI filed a criminal case for usurpation of property as well as civil case for
forcible entry with a TRO to remove the barricades built. While the legal cases are on going, FHI presented
the legal documents together with the corresponding payment of related taxes to the BIR and subsequently
on September 17, 2014 the Bureau of Internal Revenue RDO 71 Kalibo, Aklan issued the Certificate
Authorizing Registration (CAR) 2013-00196356 to Friday’s Holdings. Inc.
BHI is the beneficial owner of the 77% equity of Friday’s Holdings, Inc. It directly owns 55% while 22%
is indirectly owned through Crown One Land, Inc.
Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc.
Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc. is the owner of Friday’s Puerto Galera Beach Resort in Boquete Island, Sto.
Nino, Puerto Galera, Oriental Mindoro. FPGI was incorporated on August 11, 2006.
6
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Its primary purpose is to act as manager or managing agents of persons, firms, associations, corporations,
partnerships and other entities, to provide management, investment and technical advice for commercial,
industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises, and to undertake, carry on, assist or participate in the
promotion, entities, except the management of funds, securities, portfolio or similar assets of the managed entities
or corporations.
The construction of Friday’s Puerto Galera Beach Resort is ongoing for the luxurious native-style boutique
hotel in the island with 38 rooms, restaurant and other hotel facilities. The Parent Company finances the
construction through JP Guilds, Inc.’s direct investments at BHI.
At present, BHI is the beneficial owner of the 45.46% equity of Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc. The Parent
Company controls the financial and operating policies of FPGI by virtue of a shareholders’ agreement by the
majority shareholders in favor of the minority shareholder.
On August 4, 2009 the Department of Environment and Natural Resources, Environmental Management Bureau,
Regional Office No. IV-B MIMAROPA, issued the Environmental Compliance Certificate ECC R4B-09071359690 to the company. This ECC covers the operation of Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc. hotel project.
The Registrant is confident to fill up its Friday’s Boquete Resort Hotel, once completed and turned over to
Friday’s management within the first half of 2015. FPGI’s soft opening is moved scheduled within the first
half of 2015. The construction is 65% complete resort property and need around P150 million more to complete
construction. The ongoing hotel construction is managed by British-led, a LEED-certified global construction
consultants, Langdon & Seah (“LS”). The architects are from the Maldives while the landscape architectural
design, architectural and engineering design, and full interior design are by Palafox Associates.
Crown One Land, Inc.
Crown One Land, Inc., a 50% owned entity of BHI, is a part owner of Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort in Boracay
Island, Malay, Aklan. It was incorporated on April 30, 1990. COLI is engaged in the real estate business and
currently owns 44% of FHI.
Its primary purpose is to acquire by purchase, lease, donation or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop,
subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop, and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all kinds,
whether improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings, houses, apartments, and other structures of whatever
kind, together with their appurtenances.

Any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings
None.
Any material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets
not in the ordinary course of business.
On November 25. 2009 through properties-for-shares swap arrangement, Boulevard Holdings, Inc. acquired
seven (7) parcels of land located at Barangay Sapang, Ternate, Cavite, with an aggregate area of one million
sixty six thousand twelve (1,066,012) square meters, to be used for the site of the proposed third Friday’s Resort.
The exchange of the shares of stock for the property was certified by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as a taxdeferred exchange under Section 40(C)(2) of the Tax Code of 1997, in a certification issued on December 13,
2006.
The above mentioned properties were appraised by an accredited appraiser, Cuervo Appraiser, Inc. on October
15, 2009 for =
P1,867,916,000. The subject properties covered by shares-swap-arrangement were valued at
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=
P900,000,000 representing 48.18% of the appraised value while the value of shares of stock acquired by JP
Guilds, Inc. at 50% premium based on the prevailing market price of =
P0.10 per share. Subsequently, on
September 15, 2011 and January 22 and 23, 2013 the accredited appraiser updated the appraisal report with
unchanged value of =
P1.87 billion.
The said transaction increased the authorized capital stock by Six Hundred Million Pesos (P
=600,000,000)
divided into six (6) billion shares at a par value of =
P0.10 per share. The shares were fully subscribed and were
paid in full by JP Guilds, Inc. by way of assignment of land. The issuance of additional capital stock of six (6)
billion common shares was valued at 50% above par or =
P0.15 per share for a total of Nine Hundred Million
Pesos (P
=900,000,000) inclusive of additional paid-in capital of Three Hundred Million Pesos (P
=300,000,000).
The properties were subsequently registered in the name of BHI on April 14, 2010.
The above-mentioned transactions were covered by the resolution adopted by the unanimous vote of the
stockholders of BHI owning or representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the issued and outstanding capital stock
of the Corporation to increase from Two Hundred Million Pesos (P
=200,000,000) divided into two (2) billion
shares at a par value of =
P0.10 each share, up to Five (5) Billion Pesos divided into fifty (50) billion common
shares at a par value of =
P0.10 per share during its annual stockholders’ meeting on February 7, 2007. That the
increase of authorized capital stock of the Corporation from Two Hundred Million Pesos (P
=200,000,000) to Five
Billion Pesos (P
=5,000,000,000) was likewise approved by the vote of the majority of the Board of Directors at a
special meeting held on February 27, 2007.
Business of Issuer and Significant Subsidiaries:
Principal products and services and their markets
The principal products and services of FHI came from the rental of 41 native cottage-styled rooms and the
11-room villa that it owns, as well as revenues derived from the food and beverage products served in its 120seat capacity beachfront restaurant. Other revenues also came from aqua sports rental, merchandise sales from the
souvenir shop, guests transfer services, and massage services. The registrant, on the other hand, owns several
leasable condominium units.
Foreign sales
FHI sales derived entirely from domestic transactions. For fiscal year 2014, FBBR’s revenues were sourced from
foreign guests (95%) and local tourists (5%). FBBR’s foreign hotel guests originated from Europe (37%),
United States of America (13%), Southeast Asia (39%), and the Middle East and South Africa (1%).
Distribution methods
FHI has a dedicated marketing team that is tasked to sell its products and services to customers as well as through
several local and foreign travel agents.
New product or service
None.
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Competition
As per Department of Tourism Malay, there are about 289 resorts established in Boracay Island for the fiscal year
2014. Direct competitors of FBBR’s in term of DoT’s classification of resorts similar to market class and similar
room capacity in the same general location and offering the same range of room rates are the following: Shangrila
Resort and Spa, Alta Vista de Boracay, Grand Vista Boracay, Fairways and Bluewater, Discovery Shores,
Ambassador in Paradise, and Seawind. FHI has 25 years of experience and reputation as a pioneer resort in
Boracay. Despite the proximity of the other direct competitors, Friday’s is still considered the preferred
destination of its target market. Friday’s advantage is its strategic location. It has the finest white sand and
widest beachfront in the island.
Sources and availability of raw materials
The Registrant and its subsidiaries are not dependent on raw materials or their suppliers.
Customer dependence
The Company’s sources of income are derived from revenues from operations of FHI (resort hotel business) and
income from lease of condominium units. The group has never been dependent to a single customer that
accounted for 20% of its business for the period.
Transaction with and/or dependence on related parties
The Company and its subsidiaries are not dependent on any related party transactions. The Registrant and FHI
have existing management contracts with Anglo Asian Strategic Management, Inc. (“AASMI”). There are also
monitoring agreements between the Parent Company and the two subsidiaries namely FHI and FPGI. BHI
transactions with related parties are accounted for at arm’s - length prices or on terms similar to those offered to
non-related entities in an economically comparable market. Please refer also to Note 19 (“Related Party
Transactions”) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the 2014 Audited Financial Statements for
the Group’s related party disclosures.
Licenses, trademarks, franchises
The Parent Company and its subsidiaries do not hold any patent, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises,
concessions and royalty agreements.
Government approval of principal products and services
FHI applies for DoT accreditation annually. The accreditation is based on standards set by this government
agency in classifying hotels and resorts. Last March 12, 2014 the Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort received its
annual accreditation as an AAA resort, the equivalent of a Five Star Hotel classification.
Effect of existing or probable government regulations
The Group secures various government approvals such as the ECC as part of the normal course of its business.
The Company and its subsidiaries generally meet all government regulations such as environment, health and
safety requirements.
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Research and development
The Company and its subsidiaries have not spent any amount during the last three fiscal years on research and
development activities.
Compliance with environmental laws
The Group did not incur any cost or was not affected as a result of compliance to any environmental laws.
Development projects that are classified by law as environmentally critical or projects within statutorily defined
environmentally critical areas are required to obtain an Environmental Compliance Certificate (“ECC”) prior to
commencement like the case of FPGI. The issuance of an ECC is a government certification that the proposed
project or undertaking will not cause a significant negative environmental impact; that the proponent shall ensure
that all commitments, appropriate mitigating/enhancement measures and monitoring requirements especially those
contained in the EMMOP in the IEE checklist, its modification and additional information as approved by the
EMB-R4B during the IEE checklist review shall be instituted and strictly implemented through the project
implementation. A Pollution Control Officer (“PCO”) must be appointed to handle environmental impact
management related aspects of the project as specified in the Impact Management Plan (IMP) and Environmental
Monitoring Fund. The proponent shall submit an Abandonment Plan to the EMB-R4B at least one year prior to
the project’s abandonment. The plan shall include rehabilitation /clean-up, remediation of areas affected by the
project and proposed alternative projects in the area. The project operation shall conform to the applicable
provisions of R.A. 6969 (Toxic Substances, Hazardous Waste Control Act of 1990), R.A. 8749 (Philippine Clear
Air Act of 1999) R.A. 9003 (Ecological Solid Waste Management Act of 2000), and R.A. 9275 (Philippine Clean
Water Act of 2004).
Number of employees
BHI has eight (8) employees at present; five (5) are officers and three (3) are non-managerial positions.
Employees of the Group are not subject to collective bargaining agreement. There is no known labor union
organized in BHI and its subsidiaries. FHI employs an average of 109 employees, 8% of which hold senior
managerial positions and the remaining are distributed as follows: 27% are assigned in the rooms division, 39%
are assigned in the food and beverage division, and 26% are involved in the administrative functions. BHI and
FHI do not foresee any major change of the current 117 employees’ count for the ensuing twelve (12) months.
FPGI will soon start recruiting the manpower needs for its hotel operations in FY 2015. It expects to hire an
average of 90 seasoned and young employees for its initial year of operations. The Group will employ around
215 employees within the next FY 2015.
Major risks
The following is a summary of risk factors which may affect the business’ financial condition and results of
operations of the Group. Please also refer to other information set forth in this report, including the Audited
Financial Statements and the Related Notes and “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations”
•

•

FHI is subject to significant competitors in the business. Each of the Company’s primary operating
business is subject to intense rivalry. It competes with other resorts to attract hotel customers. At
present, FHI remains the preferred upscale resort destination in Boracay. Some competitors may
have substantially greater financial and other resources than BHI’s subsidiaries, which may allow
them to undertake more aggressive marketing and to react more quickly and effectively to changes in
the markets and consumers preferences. This may lead to the Company’s primary business
segments to decline its sales and profit margins.
Any decline in tourist arrivals could potentially limit the growth of FHI’s business. FHI, known for
its world-class accommodations and services as well as premium location, is expected to perform
10
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•

•

•
•

•

•

strongly notwithstanding a tourism slowdown as evidenced by its above average performance in
spite of a low tourists arrival for the past years.
The hospitality and leisure segment is a very labor-intensive industry and any significant increase in
the employees turnover rate could lead to an increase in recruiting and training costs as well as a
decrease in its operating efficiency. This risk is aggravated by the growing labor shortage of
qualified and skilled employees.
Materials used in food production demand quality and specialty. The materials are subject to price
volatility caused by changes in supply and demand, weather conditions, fuel costs, transportation,
production, agricultural uncertainty, and government controls. Purchasing, therefore, should be
keep posted about supply sufficiency in the market and should explore for new potential sources.
The Company and its subsidiaries are susceptible to business and political risks that could result in
reduced revenues or earnings. This risk is inherent to all businesses operating in the Philippines.
Operations of the Group may be exposed by capital availability and investors confidence. The
timing and amount of the Company’s working capital and capital expenditure requirements may vary
significantly depending on numerous factors. The Company’s ability to raise capital in the future, as
and when needed, may be limited, and could deter the implementation of its business strategy.
The Company and its subsidiaries’ assets are always exposed to damages or impairment through fire,
natural and/or man-made disasters and other accidents that may materially disrupt operations and
ultimately resulting in business losses. Safety precautionary measures have been undertaken and
installed within the operating system.
Other risks that the Company and its subsidiaries may be exposed to are as follows:
a. changes in domestic and international interest rates;
b. changes in materials, labor, power rates and other costs;
c. multiple legal proceedings over the ownership and possession of a parcel of land located
at Barangay, Balabag, Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan covered by ARP/TD Nos. 3676 and
3677 with PIN Nos. 038-12-003-004-136 and 138-12-03-004-137;
d. the standstill of the 65% completed construction of the Friday’s Puerto Galera beach
resort property because of the group’s disaster in Boracay Beach Resort may affect
early wear and tear of the assets;
e. changes in laws and regulations that apply to the Philippine tourism industry;
f. deteriorating peace and order situation in the country; and
g. travel restrictions - and their impact on the travel industry.

Please refer also to Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the discussion of the
Group’s Financial Risk Management Objectives and Capital Management.
To further mitigate the above mentioned risks the Registrant and its subsidiaries shall continue to adopt
appropriate risk management tools as well as conservative finance and operational controls and policies
to manage the various business risks the Group possibly may encounter.
Item 2 – Properties
On consolidated basis, total property and equipment of the Registrant and subsidiaries were valued at
=
P382.39 million and =
P313.66 million as of May 31, 2014 and May 31, 2013, respectively. The details follows:
May 31, 2014
=
P114,420,000
14,202,350
105,379,737
2,275,387
15,341,622
18,751,483
4,111,061

Land
Condominium Units and Improvements
Building and Building Equipment
Office Equipment
Transportation Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Machinery and Equipment
11
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May 31, 2013
=
P114,420,000
13,180,351
105,379,737
1,863,963
12,105,307
18,866,024
3,849,632

Glassware
Construction in Progress
Ending Balances
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Net Book Values

1,528,195
230,198,890
506,208,725
123,816,457
=
P382,392,268

161,667,572
431,332,586
117,670,091
=
P313,662,495

Location of principal properties of the Registrant and its subsidiaries
Company
Boulevard
Holdings, Inc.

Description
Land

Location/Address
Barangay Sapang, Ternate Cavite

Land

Sto. Nino Puerto Galera, Oriental
Mindoro
Peak Tower Condominium, 1704
Leviste Street, Salcedo Village, Makati
City

Condominium units

Asian Mansion II Condominium units,
Nieva corner dela Rosa Streets, Legaspi
Village, Makati City
LPL Greenhills Condominium unit, 17
Eisenhower Street, Greenhills, San Juan,
Metro Manila

Friday’s
Holdings, Inc.

Friday’s Puerto,
Galera, Inc.

Land, hotel buildings,
building equipment,
machinery and
equipment, and
operating equipment
Land and
construction in
progress of hotel
project

Burgundy Corporate Towers
Condominium units, Senator Gil Puyat
Avenue, Makati City.
Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan,
Philippines

Sto. Nino, Puerto Galera, Oriental
Mindoro, Philippines

Condition
For site of the proposed third
Friday’s Resort and for other
developments
For additional hotel site
project
Corporate office of the
Registrant

Leasable units
Leasable unit

Leasable units
In use for operations

Site of the second Friday’s
Resort

The Registrant and its subsidiaries have the complete ownership of the properties mentioned above.

Parcels of Land Leased by the subsidiaries of the registrant
Below is the list of leased properties by FHI and condition thereof as of May 31, 2014:
Location
Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan,
Lot covered by TD Nos. 3681, 3679 3670 & 3677 with an area of 760.6
sq. m. and TD Nos. 3680 and 3677 with an areas of 253.2 sq. m.(1)
Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan
Lot 624-B with an area of 500 sq. m. a portion of an undivided interest in
a parcel of land with an area of 1,000. Sq. m.
Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan
Lot covered by TD No. 1220 with an area of 817 sq. m.
Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan
Lot 616 covered by TD No. 1408 with an area of 584.83 sq. m.(2)
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Expiration of
Lease

Term of Renewal

February 13, 2014

Option of both parties

April 30, 2019

Option of both parties

November 30,
2016
February 14,
1997

Option of both parties
Option of both parties

U/G 34 Alfaro Place, 146 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, Makati City
U/G 32 Alfaro Place, 146 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, Makati City
U/G 23 Alfaro Place, 146 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, Makati City

February 28, 2018
January 31, 2015
May 31, 2015

Option of both parties
Option of both parties
Option of both parties

(1)

The property for a price of =
P65 million representing 760.6 sq.m. is covered by a joint motion for
partial judgment based on compromise agreement dated June 18, 2014 while 253.2 sq. m. is under
negotiation with the existing lessor.
(2)

The renewal contract has not been executed by reason of the death of the lessor’s administrator. FHI
makes separate payments to the heirs in proportion to their inheritance shares. The parties are still
complying with the terms and conditions of the expired agreement. Since its execution, there has been
no violation of the terms and conditions of the agreement.

There are no other mortgage, lien or encumbrance or limitation on ownership or usage over these properties.
The annual rental expenses for the leased properties for the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014 is =
P3.31 million of
which =
P2.53 million is included in the cost of sales (2013: =
P3.96 million of which =
P3.19 million is included in
the cost of sales).
The Registrant continues to seek new opportunities for additional sites for future development of Friday’s
brand that will offer attractive potential tourist destinations to replicate existing Friday’s Boracay Beach
Resort.

Item 3 – Legal Proceedings
As of May 31, 2014, a parcel of land described as Lot No. 617-pt with Road Lot located at Station 1, Brgy.
Balabag, Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan and covered by ARP/TD Nos. 3676 and 3677 with PIN Nos. 038-12-003004-136 and 038-12-003-004-137 is the subject of multiple on-going litigation in (1) Civil Case No. 07-762
entitled “Friday’s Holdings, Inc. v. Mila Yap-Sumndad et al., Aniceto S. Yap and Amable S. Yap” pending before
Branch 146 of the Regional Trial Court of Makati; (2) Civil Case No. 14-141 entitled “Friday’s Holdings, Inc. v.
Libertad Yap-Talapian, et al.” pending before Branch 59 of the Regional Trial Court of Makati—which has
already been the subject of a court-approved partial Compromise Agreement; (3) Civil Case No. 311-M entitled
“Friday’s Holdings, Inc. v. Spouses Mila Yap-Sumndad and Dalidig Sumndad, Datu Yap-Sumndad, Joel Gelito
and John Does” pending before Branch 5 of the Municipal Circuit Trial Court of Buruanga-Malay, Aklan; [4]
Civil Case No. 9823 entitled “Mila Yap-Sumndad v. Friday’s Holdings, Inc., Dalidig Sumndad, Provincial
Assessor of Aklan and Municipal Assessor of Malay, Aklan” pending before Branch 4 of the Regional Trial Court
of Kalibo, Aklan, [5] C.A. G. R. No. 134413 entitled “Mila Yap-Sumndad v. Friday’s Holdings, Inc., Dalididg
Sumndad and Hon. Rommel Baybay” pending before the Former Special Seventeenth (17th) Division of the Court
of Appeals; and [6] Spl. Civil Case No. 9925 entitled “Mila Yap-Sumndad and Joel Gelito v. Maribel De GuiaCipriano of Branch 5 of the Municipal Circuit Trial Court of Buruanga-Malay, Aklan, Branch Sheriff of Branch 5
of the Municipal Circuit Trial Court of Buruanga-Malay, Aklan and Friday’s Holdings, Inc.” pending before
Branch 8 of the Regional Trial Court of Kalibo, Aklan. The same parcel of land described above is presently
owned by Friday’s Holdings, Inc. by virtue of a Deed of Absolute Sale executed on 03 March 2014 and done
pursuant to the Order of 03 March 2014 issued by Branch 132 of the Regional Trial Court of Makati
implementing its earlier Writ of Execution of 03 February 2014 in Civil Case No. 07-762.
While the legal cases are on going, FHI obtained effectively the Certificate Authorizing Registration (CAR)
number 2013-00196356 issued by Bureau of Internal Revenue RDO 71 Kalibo, Aklan dated September 17, 2014
for the parcel of land subject of multiple litigation.
Other than legal cases mentioned above, the group is not engaged in any material litigation either as plaintiff or
defendant and the directors do not have knowledge of any material proceedings pending or threatened against
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BHI and its subsidiaries, or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceeding which might materially or adversely
affect the position or business of the Group except those mentioned above.
None of the Directors or Executive Officers is involved in any material pending legal proceedings in any court or
administrative agency of the government.
a.

None of them has been involved in any bankruptcy petition.

b.

None of them has been convicted by final judgment in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending
criminal proceeding, both domestic and foreign.

c.

None of them has been subject to any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction
(domestic or foreign) permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting their
involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities.

d.

None of them has been found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction ( in a civil action), the
Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading
market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation.

Item 4 – Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
The following matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the April 29, 2014 ASM:
1) Approval of the minutes of the annual meeting of the stockholders held on December 6, 2012;
2) Adoption of the audited financial statements as contained in the annual report for the fiscal year ending
May 31, 2013;
3) Ratification and confirmation of all acts of the board of directors and management subsequent to the
annual meeting of the stockholders held on December 6, 2012 to date;
4) Election of directors for the ensuing year;
5) Approval/ratification of the following subscriptions by JP Guilds, Inc.
i.
total of 3,099,439,776 common shares at P0.15/share issued on May 31, 2013 and December 12,
2013; and
ii.
1.25 billion common shares at P0.15/share, to be taken from an increase in authorized capital
stock previously approved by the stockholders on November 19, 2010.
6) Approval of majority of the minority stockholders waiving the requirement of the Philippine Stock
Exchange to conduct a rights or public offering in relation to agenda 5.(a)
7) Approval/ ratification to sell, dispose or transfer substantial amount of property and delegation of
authority to the Board(b);
8) Amendment of the articles of incorporation specifying the principal office of the Company from “Metro
Manila” to “1704 Peak Tower, 107 L.P. Levite St., Salcedo Village, Makati City.”(c)
9) Appointment of external auditor.
(a
)On October 31, 2013 the Certificate of Filing Amended Articles of Incorporation was approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
(b)

This refers to the Company’s disposal of a parcel of land at Puerto Azul, Ternate, Cavite which is subject of the
Agreement with Ayala Land, Inc. dated March 13, 2014. The Agreement is subject of a closing period in order to

obtain all requisite approvals, conduct of due diligence and other conditions precedent to closing within the next
three to four months. The Board of Directors also requests authority from the stockholders that it be authorized to
determine the terms and conditions of the transaction and finalize the same, with ratification of all previous acts of the
Board/Management relating thereto.
(c)

The amendment is made pursuant to the directive of SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, series of 2014, which
requires that a more specific principal office be stated in the Articles of Incorporation. On September 10, 2014
the Certificate of Filing Amended Articles of Incorporation was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
14
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PART II – SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Item 5 – Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholders Matters
5.1 Market Information
BHI’s common shares are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”).
The high and low stock prices of BHI’s common shares for each fiscal quarter within the past two years and first
quarter of FY 2014 were as follows:
Period
1st Quarter - June to August
2nd Quarter - September to November
3rd Quarter - December to February
4th Quarter - March to May

Fiscal Year
May 31, 2015
High
Low
=
P.14
=
P..12

Fiscal Year
May 31, 2014
High
Low
=
P.17
=
P.12
.17
.12
.15
.13
.16
.13

Fiscal Year
May 31, 2013
High
Low
=
P.18
=
P.10
.19
.14
.16
.13
.21
.12

The market capitalization of BHI as of May 31, 2014, based on the closing price of =
P0.13 per share, was
approximately =
P1,560,000,000.
The market capitalization of BHI as of September 24, 2014, based on the closing price
was approximately =
P1,476,000,000.

of =
P0.123 per share,

5.2 Stockholders
There were 397 stockholders of record as of My 31, 2014 on the Register of Shareholders but the Company was
not able to identify the actual number of beneficial owners who are registered either under the name of the
member companies of the PSE or PCD Nominee Corporation. Currently, there are 12,000,000,000 common
shares issued and subscribed.
The list of top 20 stockholders of BHI as of May 31, 2014 is stated hereunder:

STOCKHOLDERS

TITLE OF

NUMBER OF

NATIONALITY

SHARES

SHARES

PERCENTAGE

1

PCD NOMINEE CORP. - FILIPINO

Filipino

Common

5,445,450,689

45.38%

2

JP GUILDS, INC.

Filipino

Common

5,202,915,000

43.36%

3

PCD NOMINEE CORP.- NON-FILIPINO

Non-Filipino

Common

1,297,318,300

10.81%

4

KATRINA E. PANLILIO

Filipino

Common

5,000,000

0.04%

5

PAULINO C. PETRALBA

Filipino

Common

5,000,000

0.0%

6

NESTOR RILLORAZA

Filipino

Common

4,850,000

.04%

7

LORENZO MOJICA

Filipino

Common

4,009,998

.03%

8

MAURO B. BADIOLA

Filipino

Common

3,750,000

.03%

9

JOSE MARCEL PANLILIO

Filipino

Common

3,502,000

.03%

10

RONALD T. ONG

Filipino

Common

3,000,000

.03%

11

JUAN GO SANTILLAN

Filipino

Common

2,500,000

.02%

12

DOMINGA MOJICA

Filipino

Common

2,000,000

.02%

13

DAVID KHO

Filipino

Common

1,500,000

.01%
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14

CHRISTOPHER GOTANCO

Filipino

Common

1,200,010

.01%

15

ERNESTO B. LIM

Filipino

Common

1,200,0000

.01%

16

Filipino

Common

700,000

.01%

17

MARY TAN
MIGUEL D. MARANA OR CENON BIENVENIDO
D. MARANA

Filipino

Common

600,000

.01%

18

SIMPLICIO L. YAP, JR.

Filipino

Common

500,000

.00%

19

STANLEY TAN

Filipino

Common

500,000

.00%

20

PEOPLES FINANCING CO.

Filipino

Common

500,000

.00%

SUB-TOTAL

Common

11,985,995,997

99.88%

OTHER STOCKHOLDERS

Common

14,004,003

0.12%

TOTAL SHARES

Common

12,000,000,000

100.00%

Please refer to Item 11 for stockholders holding 5% or more. PCD Nominee Corporation – Filipino and PCD
Nominee Corporation – Non Filipino are comprised of several nominees holding less than 5% ownership each.
5.3

Dividends in the Two Most Recent Years

The declaration of dividends depends upon the Company’s earnings, cash flow and financial condition, among
other factors. The Company may declare dividends out of its unrestricted retained earnings only. Unrestricted
retained earnings represent the net accumulated earnings of the Company, with its capital unimpaired which are
not appropriated for any other purpose. The Company may pay dividends in cash, distribute property, or issue
shares of stock. Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits and shall be payable at such time and
in such manner and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine. No dividends shall be declared
which would impair the capital of the Registrant. There has been no declaration of dividends in the two most
recent years.
As of fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 there are no restrictions imposed by the Company on the declaration of cash
or property dividends.
5.4

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction

For the past three (3) years the Registrant has not sold securities which are not registered under the Code. There
were 500,000,000 securities issued in January 2007 in exchange for property-for- shares swap arrangement listed
in the Philippine Stock Exchange on June 15, 2009. There were 6,000,000,000 new securities issued on February
9, 2010 in exchange for properties-for-shares swap arrangement. The six (6) billion shares were listed at the
PSE on October 20, 2010.
On May 23, 2012 the Board of the PSE, in its regular meeting, approved the application of BHI to list
additional 466,853,408 common shares with a par value of =
P0.10 per share to cover its private placement
transactions with JP Guilds, Inc. The 466,853,408 common shares were issued at =
P0.2142 per share, with a total
transaction value of =
P100 million. Subsequently, on June 1, 2012, the additional common shares were listed at
PSE.
On February 13, 2013 the Board of the PSE, in its regular meeting, approved the application of BHI to list
additional 466,853,408 common shares (second tranche) with a par value of =
P0.10 per share to cover its private
placement transactions with JP Guilds, Inc. The 466,853,408 common shares were issued at =
P0.2142 per share,
with a total transaction value of =
P100 million. Subsequently, on April 10, 2013, the additional common shares
were listed at PSE.
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On May 31, 2013, JP Guilds, Inc. subscribed 933,333,333 common shares of the Corporation amounting to
=
P140 million representing the first tranche of the subscription agreement. Of this amount, =
P105 million remains
to be subscription receivable as at May 31, 2013.
BHI filed a listing application on June 25, 2013 to list additional 466,853,408 common shares (third tranche)
with a par value of =
P0.10 per share to cover its private placement transactions with JP Guilds, Inc. The
466,853,408 common shares were issued at =
P0.2142 per share, with a total transaction value of =
P100 million.
The listing application was approved by the Board of Directors of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. in its
regular meeting on January 22, 2014.
During the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014 BHI filed several Notices of Exemption with the SEC for the
issuance of the total 2,166,106,443 common shares in four tranches which resulted in the full subscription of
BHI authorized capital stock of 12 Billion common shares. These new subscriptions were under the following
provisions of the SRC:
Section 10.1(i) Subscription for shares of the capital stock of the corporation xx in pursuance of an increase in its
authorized capital stock under the Corporation Code, when no expense is incurred, or no commission, or
compensation or remuneration is paid or given in connection with the sale or disposition such securities, and
only when the purpose for soliciting, giving or taking of such subscription is to comply with the requirements of
such law as to the percentage of the capital stock of a corporation which should be subscribed before xxx its
authorized capital stock increased.
Section 10.1(e) the sale of capital stock of a corporation to its own stockholders exclusively, where no
commission or other remuneration is paid given directly or indirectly in connection with the sale of such capital
stock.
As of May 31, 2014 BHI’s authorized capital stock of 12,000,000,000 common shares with the par value of
=
P0.10 each has been fully subscribed with subscription receivable amounting to =
P 348,686,975.

PART III FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 6 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation
The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of BHI should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes as at and for the years ended May 31,
2014, 2013, and 2012 included elsewhere in this Annual Report. This discussion contains forward-looking
statements that reflect Registrant’s current views with respect to future events and its future financial
performance. These statements involve risks and uncertainties and the Registrant’s actual results may differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements.
Review of Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2014 Compared with Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2013
Overview
BHI main segment
Hotels, leisure and tourism related segment - provided by Friday’s Holdings, Inc., owner and operator of
Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort which reported total sales of =
P125.09 million for the current year (2013:
=
P124.24 million). The management has continued to take actions that will further develop this segment: a) the
impending business development of Friday’s Puerto Galera at Boquete Island, Puerto Galera, Mindoro, Friday’s
Boracay Island Beach Resort which is expected to be operational in the first quarter of 2014; b) the forthcoming
business organization of Friday’s Paniman, Inc.; c) the latest acquisition of a parcel of land, building, and
furniture and fixtures at Boracay Island for further development that will further enhance future sales growth;
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and d) the plan of the Parent Company to acquire 100% stake in Cala Paniman, Inc. (“Cala”) through a sharesale purchase agreement. BHI is purchasing Cala as a vehicle for prospective joint ventures in the resort property
sector, with the right partners and completing synergies. The Parent Company’s strategy to acquire 100% stake
in Cala has not been consummated yet.
Net loss increased from =
P.83 million to =
P13.80 million in 2014 mainly due to the additional expenses incurred
on the legal issue about possession and legal case of ownership of a parcel of property at Boracy, Aklan. The
problems at Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort which took effect starting February 14, 2014 contributed to the
significant negative effect on sales which resulted in huge losses for the period.

The following are the highlights of the performance of the Registrant and its subsidiaries.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2014 and 2013
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)

31-May-14
Revenues
Cost and Expenses
Other Income
Income (Loss) Before Income
Provision for Income Tax
Net Loss
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent
Non Controlling interest

31-May-13

%
Change

=
P125.090
138.113
.256
(12.767)
1.034
(P
=13.801)

=
P124.243
126.485
7.814
5.572
6.398
(P
=.826)

1%
8%
(2,961%)
144%
(519%)
94%

(P
=12.524)
(1.277)
(P
=13.801)

(P
=3.193)
2.367
(P
=.826)

75%
285%
94%

Material changes ( + / - 5% or more ) in the financial statements
Statements of Income Items – 2014 versus 2013
•

12% decrease in cost of sales and services
Due to effect of lower cost on the property, operations and maintenance and guest laundry brought by
reduced saleable rooms of hotel operations and lower occupancy which started in February 2014 caused by
land disputes at Friday’s Boracay property.

*

22% increase in general, administrative and selling expenses
Mainly due to the effect of higher expenses incurred for the period namely personnel costs, professional
fees, power light and water, commissions, fees and licenses, and repairs and maintenance.

•

5% increase in net interest cost on retirement benefit cost
Mainly due to increase in retirement cost for the period.
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•

Bank charges
Bank charges incurred for the period =
P.134 million to (2013: nil.

•

294% decrease in foreign exchange gains (losses) –net
Due to the net unfavorable effect of foreign exchange fluctuations of the Philippine peso as compared to
US dollar currency for the period

•

10,578% decrease in interest income
Mainly due to lower cash deposits that earned interest income for the period.

•

Gain on reversal of payable
Gain on reversal of payable for the period nil as compared to =
P7.220 million in 2013.

•

Interest expense
Mainly due to nil charges for the period as compared to net charges of =
P.388 million in 2013.

•

Income (loss) before income tax
Mainly due to higher costs and expenses namely personnel costs, professional fees, power light and water,
commissions, fees and licenses, and repairs and maintenance incurred for the period which resulted to loss
for the period for =
P12.768 million as compared to net income of =
P5.571 million in 2013.

•

519% decrease in provision for income tax
Mainly due lower taxable income for the period .

•

94% increase in income (loss) after tax
Mainly due loss to loss incurred for the period caused by higher costs and expenses namely personnel costs,
professional fees, power light and water, commissions, fees and licenses, and repairs and maintenance.

•

75% increase in attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Mainly due to higher net loss incurred for the period

•

Income attributable to non-controlling interest
Mainly due to net loss incurred for the period =
P1.277 million vs. net income =
P2.267allocated to noncontrolling interest in 2013.

•

67% decrease in loss per share
Mainly due to higher costs and expenses namely personnel costs, professional fees, power light and water,
commissions, fees and licenses, and repairs and maintenance incurred for the period.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position & Operational Highlights
May 31, 2014 and 2013
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
In Million Pesos
Total Current Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

31-May-14
=
P85.702
1,783.315

31-May-13
=
P79.245
1,663,324

% Change
8%
7%

=
P1,869.017

=
P1,742,569

7%

=
P179.731
9.392
1,679.894

=
P119.657
10.879
1,612,033

50%
(14%)
4%

=
P1,869.017

=
P1,742,569

7%

Statements of Financial Position Items - 2014 versus 2013
•

70% decrease in cash
Mainly due to lower collections and continuous disbursements on the on going project of the group.

•

47 % increase in prepayments and other current assets
Mainly due to increase in input VAT for the Group’s acquisition of goods and services and the ongoing
construction of hotel in Puerto Galera plus prepaid insurance, rent and dues and subscription.

•

22% increase in property and equipment
Mainly due to the ongoing construction of luxurious boutique hotel at Puerto Galera plus the acquisition of
transportation equipment for the period.

•

10% decrease in deferred income tax assets
Mainly due to the increase of deferred tax assets components on retirement benefit obligation from =
P1.8
million in 2012 to =
P2.2 million in 2013 net of applicable accrued rent expenses accrued interest expenses.

•

13% increase in other noncurrent assets
Mainly due to increase of deposit for land acquisition for a planned purchase of properties in Moalboal,
Cebu and the deposit for future stock subscription.

•

54% increase in trade and other payable
Mainly due to the reclassification of deposit for future stock subscription to additional paid in capital stock
and additional paid in capital, partial payment of payable for land acquisition, and decrease in amounts
owed to related parties net of increase in trade payables and guests’ deposits.

•

14% decrease in retirement benefit obligation
Mainly due to lower retirement benefit costs obligation for the period.

•

22% increase in capital stock
Mainly due to additional payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period.
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•

21% increase in additional paid-in capital
Mainly due to additional payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period.

•

92% decrease in remeasurement loss on retirement benefits liability
Mainly due to lower retirement benefit li ability incurred for the period.

•

232% increase in subscription receivables
Mainly due to additional subscription made by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period.

•

39% decrease in retained earnings
Due to the higher losses incurred attributable to equity holders of the parent for the period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2014 and 2013
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
May 31, 2014
=
P44.871
(130.025)

Net Cash Flows (Outflows) From Operating Activities
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
Net Cash Flows From (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

May 31, 2013
=
P2.670
(214.724)

79.451

187.994

(P
=5.702)

(=
P24.060)

The consolidated cash flow statements show a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year ended May
31, 2014 of =
P5.702 million (2013: =
P24.060 million). Cash inflows from operating activities for the period is
=
P44.871 million. The Company invested in property and equipment amounting to =
P76.614 million and other
noncurrent assets for =
P53.411 million. For the current period the Company received =
P79.451 million net
proceeds from the issuance of capital stock to JP Guilds, Inc.
The Group sourced its capital requirements generally through a combination of internally generated cash, from
advance hotel bookings at Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort, and proceeds from the issuance of capital
stock. Its fundamentals remained and its statements of financial condition continued to reflect stability.
The Registrant kept its borrowings at low level or zero bank debt for the period. Total peso-denominated
liabilities registered at =
P209.476 million with no interest bearing liability in 2014.
Capital Expenditure
The Company and its subsidiaries registered total property and equipment acquisition in 2014 worth =
P76.614
million primarily for the on-going luxurious boutique hotel construction in Puerto Galera and the acquisition of
transportation equipment (2013: =
P155.850 million).
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Employees
The Company and its subsidiaries maintained an average monthly employees of 117 for the year ended May 31,
2014 and 125 employees for 2013.
Dividends
There has been no declaration of dividends in the two most recent years.
Loss per share
Loss per share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent for the current year is =
P0.0012 (2013: =
P.0004).

Other Matters
There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales and revenues or income from continuing operation.
There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons during the
reporting period. The revenues and expenses disclosed in the income statements are all business related
transactions and arose from the Company's continuing operations.
There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition of the Company or results of
its operations.

Financial Soundness Indicators
The Company’s and its majority owned subsidiaries financial soundness indicators are shown below.
Twelve months period ended
May 31, 2014
May 31, 2013
a.
b.
c.
d.
e

(1)
(2)

Current /liquidity Ratios
Current ratios(1)
Quick ratios(2)
Solvency/Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Debt to equity ratios(3)
Net debt equity ratios(4)
Asset to Equity Ratios(5)
Interest rate coverage ratios(6)
Profitability ratios
Net income margin(7)
Return on total assets(8)
Return on total equity(9)

47.68%
46.93%

66.23%
65.08%

0.00%
(0.16%)
111.26%
nil

0.00%
(0.54%)
108.10%
36.07%

(10.01%)
(0.74%)
(0.81%)

(2.57%)
(0.06%)
(0.06%)

Current assets/Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents + trade and other receivables-net + prepayment and other current assets
Current liabilities
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(3)

Total liabilities
Total equity
(4)
Current portion of obligation – cash and cash equivalents
Equity - non controlling interests
(5)
Total assets
Total equity
(6)
EBITDA
Interest expense
(7)
Net income attributable to equity holders of BHI
Total revenue
(8)
Net income after tax
Average of total assets current year and total assets previous year
(9)
Net income after tax
Average of total equity current year and total assets previous year

Review of Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2013 Compared with Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2012
Overview
BHI main segment
Hotels, leisure and tourism related segment - provided by Friday’s Holdings, Inc., owner and operator of
Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort which reported total sales of =
P124.24 million for the current year (2012:
=
P125.33 million). The management has continued to take actions that will further develop this segment: a) the
impending business development of Friday’s Puerto Galera at Boquete Island, Puerto Galera, Mindoro, Friday’s
Boracay Island Beach Resort which is expected to be operational in the first quarter of 2015; b) the forthcoming
business organization of Friday’s Paniman, Inc.; c) the latest acquisition of a parcel of land, building, and
furniture and fixtures at Boracay Island for further development that will further enhance future sales growth;
and d) the plan of the Parent Company to acquire 100% stake in Cala Paniman, Inc. (“Cala”) through a sharesale purchase agreement. BHI is purchasing Cala as a vehicle for prospective joint ventures in the resort property
sector, with the right partners and completing synergies.
Net loss declined from =
P5.19 million to =
P.91 million in 2013 mainly due to savings in
general, administrative and selling expenses incurred for the period.
The following are the highlights of the performance of the Registrant and its subsidiaries.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2013 and 2012
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)

31-May-13
Revenues
Cost and Expenses
Other Income
Income (Loss) Before Income
Provision for Income Tax
Net Loss

=
P124.243
126.485
7.814
5.572
6.398
(P
=.826)
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31-May-12
=
P125.328
135.378
8.238
(1.812)
3.381
(P
=5.192)

%
Change
(1%)
(7%)
(5%)
(408%)
89%
(84%)

cost of sales and

Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent
Non Controlling interest

(P
=3.193)
2.367
(P
=.826)

(P
=5.022)
(0.170)
(P
=5.192)

(36%)
(1,492%)
(84%)

Material changes ( + / - 5% or more ) in the financial statements
Statements of Income Items – 2013 versus 2012
•

6% decrease in cost of sales and services
Due to the effect of lower acquisition cost of basic commodities and the direct effect of 1% reduced
revenues for the period.

•

7% decrease in general, administrative and selling expenses
Mainly due to the effect of lower expenses for the period namely depreciation expenses; entertainment,
amusement and recreation; fees and licenses; dues and subscription; advertising and promotion net of other
expenses plus the direct effect of 1% reduced revenues for the period.

•

11% increase in rentals
Mainly due to higher occupancy of the leasable condominium units for the period.

•

8% increase in net interest cost on retirement benefit costs
Mainly due to the increase interest cost charges for the period.

•

41% increase in foreign exchange gains –net
Due to the net favorable effect of foreign exchange fluctuations of the Philippine peso as compared to US
dollar currency.

•

49% decrease in interest income and others-net
Mainly due to the reduction in the bank deposit balance that earns interest income for the period.

•

1,214% increase in interest expense
Mainly due to increase in interest expense incurred for the period.

•

Income (Loss) before income tax
Income before income tax of =
P5.572 million due to lower costs and expenses for the period (2012: loss of
=
P1.811 million before income tax mainly higher costs and expenses for the period).

•

89% increase in provision for income tax
Mainly due to higher taxable income for the period.

•

84% decrease in net loss
Mainly due to lower costs and expenses incurred for the period.
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•

36% decrease in attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Mainly due to lower costs and expenses incurred for the period.

•

Income attributable to non-controlling interest
Mainly due to lower costs and expenses incurred for the period resulting a net income of =
P2.367 million
(2012 net loss of =
P.170 million).

•

157% decrease in loss per share
Mainly due to lower costs and expenses incurred for the period.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position & Operational Highlights
May 31, 2013 and 2012
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
In Million Pesos
Total Current Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

31-May-13

31-May-12

% Change

=
P79.245
1,663.324

=
P86.718
1,455.933

(9%)
14%

=
P1,742.569

=
P1,542.651

13%

=
P119.656
10.879
1,612.033

=
P154.937
8.851
1,378.863

(23%)
23%
17%

=
P1,742,569

=
P1,542.651

13%

Statements of Financial Position Items - 2013 versus 2012
•

74% decrease in cash
Mainly due to the investments received from JP Guilds, Inc. that were used to fund for the ongoing Puerto Galera
hotel project.

•

11% decrease in inventories
Mainly due to the decrease in the engineering supplies and other inventories for the period.

•

256% increase in prepayments and other current assets
Mainly due to increase in input VAT for the Group’s acquisition of goods and services and the ongoing
construction of hotel in Puerto Galera plus prepaid insurance, rent and dues and subscription.

•

91% increase in property and equipment
Mainly due to the ongoing construction of luxurious boutique hotel at Puerto Galera plus the
renovation/rehabilitation cost of FBBR.

•

24% increase in deferred income tax assets
Mainly due to the increase of deferred tax assets components on retirement benefit obligation.
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•

16% increase in other noncurrent assets
Mainly due to the increase of deposit for land acquisition for a planned purchase of properties in Moalboal,
Cebu and the deposit for future stock subscription.

•

27% decrease in trade and other payable
Mainly due to the reclassification of deposit for future stock subscription to additional paid in capital stock
and additional paid in capital, partial payment of payable for land acquisition, and decrease in amounts
owed to related parties net of increase in trade payables and guests’ deposits.

*

142% increase in income tax payable
Mainly due to increase income tax liability as a result of higher taxable income for the period.

•

33% increase in customers deposits
Mainly due to more leasable units were leased resulting in the increase of deposits made by lessee for the
period.

•

23% increase in retirement benefit obligation
Mainly due to additional retirement benefit costs obligation and increase interest cost on retirement benefit
obligation for the period.

•

23% increase in Capital stock issued
Mainly due to additional payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period.

•

43% increase additional paid-in capital
Mainly due to additional payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period in excess of par value of
=
P0.10.

•

actuarial loss (gain) equity
2013 : nil as compared to =
P1.577 million in 2012.

•

subscription receivable
2013 =
P105.0 million s compared to nil in 2012.

•

9% decrease in retained earnings
Mainly due to the effect of net loss for the period.

26
17-A 05/31/2014

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2013 and 2012
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)

Net Cash Flows (Outflows) From Operating Activities
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
Net Cash Flows From (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

May 31, 2013
=
P2.670
(214.724)

May 31, 2012
=
P12.486
(127.918)

187.994

145.809

(=
P24.060)

=
P30.377

The consolidated cash flow statements show a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year ended May
31, 2013 of =
P24.060 million (2012: =
P30.377 million increase). Cash inflows from operating activities for the
period is =
P2.670 million. The Company invested in property and equipment amounting to =
P155.850 million and
other noncurrent assets for =
P58.874 million. For the current period the Company received =
P187.994 million net
proceeds from the issuance of capital stock to JP Guilds, Inc.
The Group sourced its capital requirements generally through a combination of internally generated cash, from
advance hotel bookings at Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort, and from proceeds from issuance of capital
stock. Its fundamentals remained and its statements of financial condition continued to reflect stability.
The Registrant kept its borrowings at low level or zero bank debt for the period. Total peso-denominated
liabilities registered at =
P 130.535 million with no interest bearing liability in 2013.
Capital Expenditure
The Company and its subsidiaries registered total property and equipment acquisition in 2013 worth =
P155.850
million primarily for the on-going luxurious boutique hotel construction in Puerto Galera and the acquisition of
furniture fixtures and machinery and equipment (2012: =
P19.430 million).
Employees
The Company and its subsidiaries maintained an average monthly employees of 125 for the year ended May 31,
2013 and 112 employees for 2012.
Dividends
There has been no declaration of dividends in the two most recent years.
Earnings per share
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Parent for the current year
(2012: =
P.0007).

is =
P0.0004

Other Matters
There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales and revenues or income from continuing operation.
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There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons during the
reporting period. The revenues and expenses disclosed in the income statements are all business related
transactions and arose from the Company's continuing operations.
There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition of the Company or results of
its operations.
Financial Soundness Indicators
The Company’s and its majority owned subsidiaries financial soundness indicators are shown below.
Twelve months period ended
May 31, 2013
May 31, 2012
c.
d.
c.
d.
e

Current /liquidity Ratios
Current ratios(10)
Quick ratios(11)
Solvency/Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Debt to equity ratios(12)
Net debt equity ratios(13)
Asset to Equity ratios(14)
Interest rate coverage ratios(15)
Profitability ratios
Net income margin(16)
Return on total assets(17)
Return on total equity(18)

(10)

66.23%
65.08%

55.97%
54.97%

0.00%
(0.54%)
108.10%
36.07%

0.00%
(2.51%)
111.88%
329.68%

(2.57%)
(0.06%)
(0.06%)

(4.01%)
(0.35%)
(0.39%)

Current assets/Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents + trade and other receivables-net + prepayment and other current assets
Current liabilities
(12)
Total liabilities
Total equity
(13)
Current portion of obligation – cash and cash equivalents
Equity – non controlling interests
(14)
Total assets
Total equity
(15)
EBITDA
Interest expense
(16)
Net income attributable to equity holders of BHI
Total revenue
(17)
Net income after tax
Average of total assets current year and total assets previous year
(18)
Net income after tax
Average of total equity current year and total assets previous year
(11)
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Review of Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2012 Compared with Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2011
Overview
BHI main segment
Hotels, leisure and tourism related segment - provided by Friday’s Holdings, Inc.,
owner and operator of
Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort which reported total sales of =
P125.33 million for the current year (2011:
=
P144.27 million) or 13% decline. The management has continued to take actions that will further develop this
segment: a) the impending business development of Friday’s Puerto Galera at Boquete Island, Puerto Galera,
Mindoro, Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort which was initially expected to be operational in the first quarter
of 2013 was moved within the second quarter of 2015; b) the forthcoming business organization of Friday’s
Paniman, Inc.; c) the recent acquisition of a parcel of land, building, and furniture and fixtures at Boracay
Island for expansion that will further enhance future sales growth; and d) the Parent Company planned to
acquire 100% stake in Cala Paniman, Inc. (“Cala”) through a share-sale purchase agreement. BHI is purchasing
Cala as a vehicle for prospective joint ventures in the resort property sector, with the right partners and completing
synergies.
Net income decreased from =
P8.42 million to =
P5.192 million loss in 2012 due to lower revenue and higher cost
and expenses incurred for the period.

The following are the highlights of the performance of the Registrant and its subsidiaries.
Consolidated Statements of Income and Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2012 and 2011
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
31-May-12
Revenues
Cost and Expenses
Other Income
Income Before Income
Provision for Income Tax
Net Income (Loss)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent
Non Controlling interest

31-May-11

=
P125.328

=
P144.273

135.378
8.238
(1.812)
3.381
(P
=5.192)

127.061
.873
18.085
9.663
=
P8.422

(P
=5.022)

=
P3.904

(0.170)

4.518

(=
P5.192)

=
P8.422

% Change
(13%)
7%
844%
(110%)
(65%)
(162%)
(229%)
(104%)
(162%)

Material changes ( + / - 5% or more ) in the financial statements
Statements of Income Items – 2012 versus 2011
•

13% decrease in revenues (11% decrease in services; 17% decrease in sales)
Mainly due to lower tourist arrivals for the period caused mainly by the effect of global economic crisis and
the recurring natural calamities in the island.
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•

5% increase in cost of sales and services
Mainly due to the effect of higher acquisition cost of basic commodities.
91% increase in general, administrative and selling expenses
Mainly due to the effect of higher personnel costs; entertainment, amusement and recreation; and fees and
licenses, net of decrease in depreciation and professional fees expenses.

•

27% decrease in rentals
Mainly due to lower occupancy of the leasable condominium units for the period.

•

79% increase in foreign exchange gains – net.
Mainly due to the favorable effect for the period of foreign exchange: US$ as compared to Philippine peso.

•

1,406% increase interest income and others-net
Mainly due to higher deposit that earned interest income for the period.

•

Gain on reversal of payable
2012 gain of =
P7.135 million but nil in2011.

•

93% decrease in interest expense
Due to the net lower interest charged for the period.

•

Income (loss) before income tax
Loss of =
P1.812 million mainly due lower revenues and higher expenses incurred for the period
(2011: =
P18.084 million income before income tax).

•

65% decrease in provision for income tax -current
Mainly due lower taxable income for the period.

•

Net income (loss)
Net loss of =
P5.19 million mainly due lower revenues and higher expenses incurred for the period
(2011: =
P8.42 million net income).

•

Income (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Due to the effect of the total lower revenues of 13% and higher costs and expenses of 7% for the period
resulted in the higher net loss attributable to equity holders of the Parent amounting to =
P5.022 million (2011:
=
P3.904 million net income).

•

Income (loss) tax attributable to non-controlling interest
Due to the effect of the total lower revenues of 13% and higher costs and expenses of 7% for the period
resulted in the net loss attributable to non-controlling interests of =
P.170 million (2011: =
P4.518 Million net
income.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position & Operational Highlights
May 31, 2012 and 2011
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
In Million Pesos
Total Current Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

31-May-12
=
P86.718
1,455.933

31-May-11
=
P43.201
1,343.456

% Change
101%
8%

=
P1,542.651

=
P1,386.657

11%

=
P154.937
8.851
1,378.863

=
P120.535
4.887
1,261.235

29%
22%
9%

=
P1,542.651

=
P1,386.657

11%

Statements of Financial Position Items - 2012 versus 2011
•

1,608% increase in cash
Mainly due to investments received from JP Guilds, Inc. to fund for the ongoing Puerto Galera project.

•

44% increase in trade and other receivables
Mainly due to increase amounts owed by related parties for the period.

•

43% decrease in inventories
Mainly due to lower balances for food and beverages inventories for the period.

•

Available-for-sale (AFS) investments
Mainly due to the divestment made for the year.

•

6% increase in property and equipment
Mainly due to the acquisition of building and equipment at Friday’s Boracay and the ongoing construction
of boutique hotel at Puerto Galera.

•

71% increase in deferred tax assets
Mainly due to the increase of deferred tax assets components on retirement benefit net of applicable accrued
rent expenses and allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables.

•

44% increase in other noncurrent assets
Mainly due to the acquisition of land adjacent to Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort and the increase of
deposit for land acquisition for a planned purchase of properties in Moalboal, Cebu and the increase in
miscellaneous assets.

•

39% increase in trade and other payable
Mainly due to increase in trade payable, deposit for future subscription, and accrued expenses

•

62% decrease in income tax payable
Mainly due to decrease income tax liability as a result of lower taxable income for the period.
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•

Current portion of obligations under finance lease
=
P.15 million balance as of May 31, 2011 (2012: none) as a result of full payment of obligations for the period.

•

93% decrease in customers’ deposits
Mainly due to refund of deposits made by lessees for the period.

•

Customers’ deposit-non current
Mainly due to reclassification made to current portion (2011: =
P.15 million; 2012: none).

•

87% increase in retirement benefit obligation
Mainly due to the additional retirement benefit costs obligation and the increase interest cost on retirement
benefit obligation for the period.

•

6% increase in capital stock issued
Mainly due to the payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period.

•

18% increase additional paid-in capital
Mainly due to the payment of subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. for the period in excess of par.

•

Unrealized loss on AFS
=
P25.302 in 2011 (2012: balance nil).

•

12% decrease in retained earnings
Mainly due to the effect of net loss attributable to the equity holders of the parent for the period and other
adjustments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Operational Highlights
Years Ended May 31, 2012 and 2011
(In Million Pesos Unless Otherwise Stated)
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
Net Cash Flows From (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash

May 31, 2012
=
P12.486
(127.918)

May 31, 2011
=
P 31.069
(20.368)

145.809

(11.743)

=
P30.377

(P
=1.042)

The consolidated cash flow statements show a net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year ended May
31, 2012 of =
P30.377 million (2011: =
P1.042 million decrease). Cash from operating activities for the period is
=
P12.486 million. The Company invested in property and equipment amounting to =
P19.431 million and other
noncurrent assets for =
P109.031 million. For the current period the Company received =
P145.962 million from the
proceeds from issuance of stock and deposits for future subscription for from JP Guilds, Inc.
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The Group sourced its capital requirements generally through a combination of internally generated cash, from
advance hotel bookings at Friday’s Boracay Island Beach Resort and proceeds from equity financing Its
fundamentals remained and its statements of financial condition continued to reflect stability.
The Registrant kept its borrowings at low level or zero bank debt for the period. Total peso-denominated
liabilities registered at =
P 163.788 million with no interest bearing liability in 2012.
Capital Expenditure
The Company and its subsidiaries registered total property and equipment acquisition in 2012 worth =
P19.431
million primarily for furniture and fixtures, machinery and equipment and the on-going construction in Puerto
Galera (2011: =
P4.313 million).
Employees
The Company and its subsidiaries maintained an average monthly employees of 112 for the year ended May 31,
2012 and 130 for 2011.
Dividends
There has been no declaration of dividends in the two most recent years.
Earnings per share
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of
(2011: =
P.0005).

the Parent for the current year

is =
P0.0007

Other Matters
There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales and revenues or income from continuing operation.
There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons during the
reporting period. The revenues and expenses disclosed in the income statements are all business related
transactions and arose from the Company's continuing operations.
There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition of the Company or results of
its operations.
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Financial Soundness Indicators
The Company’s and its majority owned subsidiaries financial soundness indicators are shown below.
Twelve months period ended
May 31, 2012
May 31, 2011
a.

Current /liquidity Ratios
Current ratios(19)
Quick ratios(20)
b. Solvency/Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Debt to equity ratios(21)
Net debt equity ratios(22)
c. Asset to Equity Ratios(23)
d. Interest rate coverage ratios(24)
e Profitability ratios
Net income margin(25)
Return on total assets(26)
Return on total equity(27)

55.97%
54.97%

35.84%
33.58%

0.00%
(2.51%)
111.88%
329.68%

0.01%
(0.15%)
109.94%
93.12%

(4.01%)
(0.35%)
(0.39%)

2.71%
0.61%
0.67%

(19)

Current assets/Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents + trade and other receivables-net + prepayment and other current assets
Current liabilities
(21)
Total liabilities
Total equity
(22)
Current portion of obligation – cash and cash equivalents
Equity - non controlling interests
(20)

(23)

Total assets
Total equity
(24)
EBITDA
Interest expense
(25)
Net income attributable to equity holders of BHI
Total revenue
(26)
Net income after tax
Average of total assets current year and total assets previous year
(27)
Net income after tax
Average of total equity current year and total assets previous year

Plan of Operation for the next twelve (12) months
Boulevard Holdings, Inc. aims to concentrate in the hospitality and leisure business. FBBR business will
enhance the total operations of BHI considering the expected entrance of international chains in Boracay Island,
Malay, Aklan. It will maintain its single-minded focus on its guests, which has always been FBBR’s strength. It
will continuously deliver exceptional quality service and living up to the notion that “true hospitality comes from
authentic desire to serve, from an attitude that is once thoughtful, friendly and genuinely caring”. It will continue
to improve present facilities and will increase number of saleable rooms. With the expected surge of tourist
arrivals for the ensuing year is a further reason for optimism that will give positive growth for BHI revenues
and net operating results. The Registrant’s management assessment is in line with the appraisal of the present
Aquino administration that tourism is a promising growth area for the Philippines.
The Friday’s Beach Resort business will soon normalize as FHI foresees the land dispute in Boracay Island which
started in February 2014 will be resolved. The Certificate of Authority to Transfer (CAR) was issued on
September 17, 2014 by BIR Aklan to FHI on the Boracay property subject of multiple on going litigation. The
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Register of Deeds Kalibo, Aklan will effect the immediate transfer to FHI within the month. In addition, a parcel
of the property in Boracay where FBBR restaurant is located covered by lease contract was recently acquired
by FHI. This recent acquisition will minimize the risks of losing the portion of the Boracay jewel of FHI. This
new development will further strengthen the continuous operations of FHI. The acquisition of parcels of land
within Friday’s Boracay location is in line with the planned development and growth of the group.
BHI will meet its cash requirements for the next twelve months. BHI will continue to raise additional funds
through private placement for its developments of Friday’s brand in Boracay, Puerto Galera, and Paniman
Beach, Ternate, Cavite. The ongoing hotel construction at Puerto Galera is being funded through the
investments of the Parent Company from the equity infusion of JP Guilds, Inc. which is projected to be
operational in the second quarter of 2015 after reported standstill in the completion of the project due to the
ongoing catastrophe of land dispute at Fridays Boracay Beach Resort that took effect in February 2014.
The Registrant does not foresee any known demands, commitments, events, or uncertainties that will result in or
that are reasonably likely result in BHI liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way. BHI does not
anticipate within the next twelve (12) months any cash flow or liquidity problems. BHI does not foresee to be in
default or breach of any note, loan lease or other indebtedness or financing requiring to make payments. There is
no significant amount of the Registrant’s trade payables that have not been paid with in the stated trade terms.
Item 7. Financial Statements.
The May 31, 2014 audited consolidated financial statements of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries are
incorporated herein by reference. The schedules listed in the accompanying index to supplementary schedules
are filed as part of this SEC Form 17-A.
Item 8. Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matters
Independent Public Accountants
In 2014, the principal accountants and external auditors of the Company is the Accounting firm of Sycip, Gorres
Velayo & Company (SGV & Co.).
Pursuant to the General Requirements of SRC Rule 68, Par. 3 (Qualifications and Reports of Independent
Auditors), the Company has engaged SGV & Co. as its external auditors for the past years. Mr. Jose Pepito E.
Zabat III was the lead engagement partner from audit years 2006 to 2008 and 2010. Mr. Alvin M. Pinpin was
the Partner-in-Charge for audit year 2009. For audit years 2011 to 2014, the Partner-in-Charge was Ms. Alicia
O. Lu.
Audit and Audit-related Services
The annual consolidated fees billed for the audit of the Company’s
=
P1.523 million million exclusive of VAT in 2014 and 2013.

financial statements amounted to

Tax Fees and Services
Tax consultancy services were secured from SGV & Co. and the firm billed BHI for tax fees amounted to
=
P.231 million and
=
P.086 million exclusive of VAT for the year 2014 and 2013 respectively. BHI did not
secure other products and services provided by other consultancy firms for the last two fiscal years.
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Audit Committee’s Approval
All the above services of external auditors for the years 2014 and 2013 were pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. The Committee is composed of Reynaldo Y. Maulit as chairman and Ricardo S. Pascua and
Christopher M. Gotanco as members. The board and stockholders approved the Audit Committee’s
recommendation.
All BHI stockholders who were present during the annual stockholders’ meeting held on April 29, 2014
approved the appointment of SGV & Co. as its external auditor for audit year 2014 as recommended by
BHI board of directors.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
SGV & Co., as principal auditors, issued an unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements. As
such, there had been no changes and/or disagreements with them on any accounting principles or practices,
financial disclosures, and auditing scope or procedures during the last two fiscal years.
SGV representatives will be present during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and will be given opportunity to
make a statement if they so desire. They are also expected to respond to appropriate queries, if needed.

PART IV – MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
NAME
Jose Marcel Panlilio
Lorenzo R. Tanada III
Joselito V. Cabrera
Christopher M. Gotanco
Reynaldo Y. Maulit
Ricardo S. Pascua
Victor V. Benavidez
Alfonso S. Anggala
Goran Carl Perning
Manuel R. Pamaran
Marlo T. Cristobal
Lyra Gracia Y. Lipae-Fabella
Mauro B. Badiola

OFFICE
Chairman/President & CEO
Vice Chairman/Corporate Compliance Officer
Director/Treasurer
Director*
Independent Director*
Independent Director*
Director
Director
Director
Member-Board of Advisers
Member-Board of Advisers
Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate
Information Officer
Vice President – Finance & Corporate
Information Officer

CITIZENSHIP
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Swedish
Filipino
Filipino

AGE
50
51
65
65
80
65
63
45
62
88
67

Filipino
Filipino

38
65

*BHI audit committee member

Profile of Directors and Executive Officers
Jose Marcel E. Panlilio
Chairman, President & CEO
Mr. Jose Marcel E. Panlilio, 50, has been a director of BHI since 1994, its Chairman since December 1995, and
President and CEO since October 2005. He is also the Director of Puerto Azul Golf and Country Club
(PAGCC), Ternate Development Corporation (“TDC”), Crown One Land, Inc., Friday’s Holdings, Inc., and
Friday’s Puerto Galera, Inc. for more than five years.
He is the Chairman of Anglo-Asian Strategic
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Management, Inc. (“AASMI”) since 1999. He graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Economics,
with concentration in Finance at the Wharton School of Business & Finance at the University of Pennsylvania in
Philadelphia, PA, U.S.A.
Lorenzo R. Tanada III
Vice Chairman
Mr. Lorenzo R. Tanada III, 51, was first elected Vice Chairman of BHI on May 20, 1996. He was elected
Chairman and President of JP Guilds, Inc. He is also the Compliance Officer for both Corporate Governance and
Anti-Money Laundering Requirements for BHI since 2002. He was elected congressman of the 4th District of
Quezon since July 1, 2004 and was the Deputy Speaker of the House of Representatives up to June 30, 2013. He
graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from Ateneo de Manila University and
graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Laws from Manuel L. Quezon University.
Joselito V. Cabrera
Director/Treasurer
Mr. Joselito V. Cabrera, 65, has been a director and treasurer of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. since February 10,
2012. He has been assigned at Citibank/Citicorp (USA) as Vice President—Credit Division up to 1995. He
worked at Fil-Estate Finance Corporaton from 1996-1997 and was responsible for credit aprroval, treasury
acquisition of bank line for the company. He worked at the Phil-Am Savings Bank from 1998-1999 as Chief
Credit Officer. At present, he works at UCS Consulting as Financial Management Consultant in loan packaging,
workouts and insurance. He is the Chairman, Information and Intellegence Services of OGC (Offical Global
Control) Corp. He earned his BSBA Management degree from Ateneo de Davao University.
Christopher M. Gotanco
Director
Mr. Christopher M. Gotanco, 65, has been a director of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. since February 7, 2007 and
Treasurer since November 19, 2010 up to February 10, 2012. He is a director and the incumbent President and
Chief Operating Officer of Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation, a publicly listed company. For the past five
(5) years, he has served as a director and/or executive officer in companies involved in transportation, mining, oil
and gas exploration, garments and manufacturing, among others. He serves as director of MRT Holdings, Inc.,
MRT Development Corporation, Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation, North Triangle Depot Commercial
Corporation, Philodrill Corporation, Carmen Copper Corporation, and Atlas Consolidated and Development
Corporation. He graduated with the degree of Bachelor of Arts in Political Science (Magna Cum Laude) from the
University of the Philippines, Master of Arts in Political Science (Studies), Rockefeller Foundation Graduate
Fellow, Master in Business Management (With Distinction) from the Asian Institute of Management and Master
of Arts (Studies), Hubert H. Humphrey Fellow in International Finance and Development at Fletcher School of
Laws and Diplomacy (Tufts University, Boston, MA, USA).
Reynaldo Y. Maulit
Independent Director
Mr. Reynaldo Y. Maulit, 80, has been a director of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. since December 28, 1998. He is also
the managing partner of Valdez Maulit Macandong and Associates Law Offices and senior partner of LCMA
Group since 1998. He earned the degree of Bachelor of Laws from Baguio Colleges Foundation, Master in
Business Administration at the Development Academy of the Philippines, and Graduate School for Judges
from the University of California, Berkeley Campus, California, U.S.A.
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Ricardo S. Pascua
Independent Director
Mr. Ricardo S. Pascua, 65, has been a director of BHI since December 2, 2005. Mr. Pascua has retired from
active full-time employment since December 2001. He serves as an independent director from January 2002 to
present to various corporate and foundation boards upon invitation of former associates. Current positions held in
business entities include: Chairman of the Board of Ready Foods Manufacturing Corp.; Facilities and Property
Management Technologies, Inc.; Biometrix Technology Phils. Corp.; and Caelum Developers, Inc. He is the
Chairman of the Executive Committee of Phoenix Land, Inc. He serves as Director of Costa de Madera
Corporation, JP Latex Technology, Inc. and Latex Holdings, Inc. He serves as an adviser to the Board of
Directors of Central Country Estate, Inc. He was the Vice Chairman/President and Chief Executive Officer of
Metro Pacific Corporation from January 2000 to December 2001. He served as Vice Chair/President & Chief
Executive Officer of Fort Bonifacio Development Corporation. Mr. Pascua was the Executive Director of First
Pacific Company Limited from February 1982 to December 2001. He graduated with the degree of Bachelor of
Arts in Economics (Cum Laude) from Ateneo de Manila University and earned his Master of Business
Management degree from the Asian Institute of Management.
Victor V. Benavidez
Director
Mr. Victor V. Benavidez, 63, has been a director of BHI since December 2, 2005. He is the General Manager of
Alakor Securities Corporation since March 1996 and Director of Friday’s Holdings, Inc. since March 2012. He
was a director of Anglo Philippines Holdings Corporation since 1993 up to 2010. He was also a director of Da
Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. (formerly Mariwasa Siam Holdings, Inc.) up to May 3, 2013. He graduated with the
degree of BSC in Economics and MSC in Economics from the University of Sto. Tomas and attended
Professional Development Program at the Center for Research and Communications.
Alfonso S. Anggala
Director
Mr. Alfonso S. Anggala, 45, was elected director of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. on December 17, 2008. He is a
director and the incumbent President of Jaral Realty Corporation and is currently the managing director of Value
Quest Securities Corporation. At present, he is the treasurer of Liberty Agro-Ventures, Inc. and a director
of Lodestar Investment Holdings Corporation and AGP Industrial Corporation. He served as President of
Lodestar Investment Holdings Corporation from November 2007 to October 2008. He graduated with the degree
of Bachelor of Science in Business Management with concentration in business management from the De La
Salle University.

Goran Carl Perning
Director
Mr. Goran Carl Perning, 62, has been a director of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. since July 20, 2011. He has been the
CEO and General Manager of Goran Perning AB, Magasinet Gardet AB, (Finance and Marketing, Warehousing)
from January 1981 to present. He graduated with the degree of Masters in Economy and Marketing from the
Frans Schartau Gymnasie, Stockholm, Sweden.
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Marlo T. Cristobal
Member-Board of Advisers
Mr. Marlo T. Cristobal, 67, has been appointed as member of the board of advisers since August 16, 2007 and
served as BHI director since July 13, 1994 up to August 2007. For the past five years, he sits as director of
PAGCC. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree and Bachelor of Laws from the University
of the Philippines.
Manuel R. Pamaran
Member-Board of Advisers
Mr. Manel R. Pamaran, 88, was appointed as member of the board of advisers since August 16, 2007. He sits as
director of Friday’s Holdings, Inc. since March 2012. He is engaged in private law practice under a firm name
Pamaran Ramos & Partners Law Offices. He is the Dean, College of Law, Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Pasay;
Member, Board of Trustees, Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Pasay; Member, Board of Regents, Universidad de
Manila; legal consultant, Office of the Mayor, Pasay City; Lecturer, U.P. Law Center; President, Hunters, ROTC
Guerilla Association; member, Vice President for Charter Organization, Supreme Council, Veterans Federation of
the Philippines; member, executive Board as Vice President for Charter Organization, VFP; member, Board of
Trustees, Veterans World War II; appointed by the Supreme Court as member of the Sub-committee on the
Revision of Rules on Criminal Procedure under the Committee on the Revision of the Rules of Court. He was
appointed as the Presiding Justice of Sandiganbayan in December 1978 and retired on June 7, 1986. He was the
Legal Consultant, Office of the Vice-President, Philippines 1996 to 1998. He served as Presidential Assistant on
Justice, Office of the President 1998 to 2001; Member, Board of Trustee, City College of Manila. He graduated
with the degree of Bachelor of Laws at Manuel L. Quezon University and Master of Laws with concentration in
Taxation, Political Law and Labor Law at Far Eastern University.
Lyra Gracia Y. Lipae-Fabella
Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Information Officer
Ms. Lyra Gracia Y. Lipae-Fabella, 38, is the Corporate Secretary of the Company since November 19, 2010. She
serves as Corporate Secretary of Friday’s Holdings, Inc. and Crown One Land, Inc. since August 2011. She
is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines. Her work experience
includes that as of Junior Auditor in a leading auditing firm, Associate in a law firm and Securities Counsel III
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. She is presently the Managing Partner of the Fabella and Fabella
Law Office. She likewise serves as Corporate Secretary to a number of publicly-listed and private companies.
She graduated from the San Beda College of Law and obtained her BS Business Administration and Accountancy
degree from the University of the Philippines-Diliman.
Mauro B. Badiola
Vice President-Finance & Corporate Information Officer
Mr. Mauro B. Badiola, 65, was appointed as Vice President-Finance of BHI on July 1, 1998 and Corporate
Information Officer on December 2, 2005 to the present. He sits as director of Friday’s Holdings, Inc. since
October 2011 and of COLI since December 28, 2012 up to present. His work experience includes that as an
auditor in a leading auditing firm and as a comptroller and treasury head in a leading multinational
pharmaceutical company and as a financial comptroller in various hotels in Metro Manila. He graduated with
the degree of Bachelor of Arts in Economics (Magna Cum Laude), Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration with concentration in Finance (Cum Laude) and Bachelor of Science in Commerce with
concentration in Accounting (Cum Laude) at the University of St. Anthony. He obtained his Master in Business
Administration degree (Dean’s Lister) from the Ateneo de Manila University. He is a Certified Public
Accountant.
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There are no events that occurred during the past five (5) years that are material to an evaluation of the ability or
integrity of any director, any nominee for election as director, executive officer, underwriter or control person of
the registrant: (a) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; (b) any
conviction of final judgment; (c) being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reverse,
suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities
commodities, or banking activities; and (d) being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction
(in civil action), the commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other
organized trading market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.
Officers are appointed or elected annually by the Board of Directors, each to hold office until the corresponding
meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year or until a successor shall have been elected, appointed or shall
have qualified. The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of one year. The directors are
elected at each Annual Stockholders’ Meeting by the stockholders entitled to vote. Each director hold office until
the next annul election for a term of one year and until his successor is duly elected unless he resigns, dies or is
removed prior to such election. Any vacancy in the Board other than by removal or expiration of term may be
filled by a majority vote of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for that purpose, if they still
constitute a quorum. The directors so chosen shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.
None of the directors or executive officers are involved in any material legal proceeding.
No director has resigned nor declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date of BHI’s
last annual meeting because of a disagreement with BHI on matters relating to its operations, policies and
practices.
Likewise, the Company has an existing agreement with AASMI, the management arm of the Panlilio’s Group of
Companies. AASMI, in coordination with the Company’s team of management professionals, provides
management services on finance, project planning and asset management, marketing services and public relations,
human resources development and security.
The Company considers its entire work force as significant employees. Everyone is expected to work together as
a team to achieve the Company’s goals and objectives. The business of the Company is not, however, highly
dependent on the services of certain key personnel.
No director or officer within the Group is related within the fourth civil degree of consanguinity

Item 10. Executive Compensation
Information as to the aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two (2) fiscal years and to be paid
in the ensuing fiscal year to five most highly compensated employees and all officers and directors as a group
unnamed follows:
Other
Salary
Bonus
Compensation
Jose Marcel Panlilio
Chairman and President(1)
Lorenzo R. Tanada III
Vice Chairman(1)
Joselito V. Cabrera
Treasurer(1)
Lyra Gracia Yap Lipae-Fabella Corporate Secretary & Corporate Information Officer(1)
Mauro B. Badiola
Vice President – Finance & Corporate Information Office
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2013 (Actual)
Total officers
Total directors
All officers & directors as a group
2014
Total officers (Actual)
Total directors
All officers & directors as a group
2015 (Projected)
Total officers
Total directors
All officers & directors as a group

=
P1,296,000
=
P1,296,000

=
P552,443
1,150,001
1,702,444

=
P211,555
536,223
=
P747,778

=
P271,000
404,000
=
P675,000

=
P154,000
550,667
=
P704,667

=
P607,000
1,300,000
=
P1,907,000

=
P250,000
700,000
=
P950,000

=
P1,296,000
=
P1,296,000

=
P1,450,000
=
P1,450,000

(1)

The members of the Board of Directors, Chairman and President, Vice Chairman, Treasurer and Corporate
Secretary are not receiving any compensation directly or indirectly for any services they rendered. A per diem is
given to directors and officers during each meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company who are
physically present in the said meeting. The named officers received remuneration/allowance on a monthly basis
from the respective subsidiaries or businesses they handle.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Agreements.
There are no arrangements, such as consulting contracts, pursuant to which any director of the Company was
compensated, or is to be compensated, directly or indirectly, during the Company’s last two completed fiscal
years and the ensuing year, for any service rendered or to be rendered as director.
There are no employment contracts between the registrant and executive officers/directors nor any compensatory
plan or arrangement, including payments to be received from the Registrant, if such plan or arrangement results or
will result from resignation, retirement or any other termination of such executive officer or director’s
employment with the Registrant and its subsidiaries or from change-in-control of the Company, the executive
officers of the Company to be compensated a total amount exceeding =
P2,500,000.
Warrants and Options Outstanding
To date, BHI has not granted any stock option to its directors or executive officers.
Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
As of May 31, 2014, BHI has no knowledge of any individual or any party who beneficially owns in excess of 5%
of BHI common stock except as set forth below:

Title of
Class

Name, Address of
Record Owner and
Relationship
with
Issuer

Name of Beneficial Owner
and Relationship with
Record Owner
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Citizenship

No of
Held

shares
Percent

Common

PCD Nominee CorpFilipino
37/F Tower I, The
Enterprise Center,
Ayala Avenue, Makati
City
-PCD Nominee Corp.
is not related to the
registrant.

Common

JP Guilds, Inc.(e)
Matrinco Bldg., #217
Chino Roces Ave.,
Makati City

Beneficial owners are the
clients of the PCD
participants’ brokers.

Filipino

5,445,450,689

45.3788%

Jose Marcel E. Panlilio
-Beneficial owner is the
Chairman & CEO of the
Registrant

Filipino

5,202,915,000

43.3576%

Beneficial owners are the
clients of the PCD
participants’ brokers.

NonFilipino

1,297,318,300

There are no beneficial
owners owning more than
5% of the Registrant’s
capital stock.

Stockholder

Common

PCD Nominee CorpNon-Filipino
37/F Tower I, The
Enterprise Center,
Ayala Avenue, Makati
City
-PCD Nominee Corp.
is not related to the
registrant.

(e)

10.8110%

There are no beneficial
owners owning more than
5% of the Registrant’s
capital stock.

Atty. Lorenzo R. Tanada III was given the power to vote or dispose of the shares or direct the
disposition of the shares held by JP Guilds, Inc.

voting or

Item 11. Security Ownership of Management
The following information shows the shareholdings beneficially held by the management of the Company as of
May 31, 2014.
Title of
Class

Name of Beneficial
Owner

Common

Jose Marcel E. Panlilio

Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Total

Mauro B. Badiola
Christopher M. Gotanco
Reynaldo Y. Maulit
Alfonso S. Anggala
Goran Carl Perning
Ricardo S. Pascua
Victor B. Benavidez
Joselito V. Cabrera
Lorenzo R. Tanada III

Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership
Direct
Indirect
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct

Total Shares
3,502,000
5,202,915,000
3,750,000
1,200,010
100,000
100,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
1
5,211,607,011
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Citizenship
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Swedish
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino
Filipino

Percent
.0242%
41.3576%
.0313%
.0100%
.0008%
.0008%
.0001%
.0001%
.0001%
.0001%
43.4301%

There are no voting trust holders who hold five percent (5%) or more of the Company’s stock under a voting trust
or similar agreement.
There are no arrangements, which may result in a change in control of the Company.
Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The Directors by virtue of their interest in the share of the Company are deemed to have interests in the shares of
its subsidiary companies and associated companies to the extent the Company has interest. The Registrant is not
controlled by a Parent Company.
Except for the material related party transactions already stated in item 1 and item 5 of this report and in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of the Company, there has been no material transaction during the last two
years nor is there any material transaction currently proposed to which the Company was or is to be party in which
any director or executive officer of the Company or stockholder of more than ten percent of the Company’s voting
shares, and any member of the immediate family (including spouse, parents, children, siblings, and in-law) of any
such director or officer or stockholder of more than ten percent of the Company’s voting shares had or is to have a
direct or indirect material interest.
BHI and the subsidiaries’ employees are required to disclose promptly any business and family related
transactions with the Group to ensure that potential conflict of interests are determined and brought to the
attention of the management.

PART V - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance
The Company adopted a Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the rules and principles of good
corporate governance. A copy of the initial Manual was submitted to SEC and PSE on August 30, 2002. The first
revision of the Manual was submitted to the governing agencies on June 22, 2008. The amendment pertained to
the inclusion of requiring a director before assuming office to attend a seminar on corporate governance
conducted by a duly recognized private or government institution. On February 24, 2011, the Company
submitted the 4th Amended Manual on Corporate Governance to PSE and SEC. On July 25, 2014, the latest
revision was made for BHI Manual on Corporate Governance.
Pursuant to the Manual, three (3) Board committees – namely Nomination, Compensation and Remuneration, and
Audit were created to aid in complying with the principles of good corporate governance.
Under the Manual on Corporate Governance of the Company, the Compliance Officer directly is responsible for
monitoring compliance with the provisions and requirements, as well as violations of the Manual of Corporate
Governance and issues a certification with the countersignature of the Company’s Chairman/President and CEO
regarding the level of compliance of the Company.
The Company complies with regulations and issuances issued by government authorities pertaining to corporate
governance. The Company’s directors and officers have complied with the practice and policies contained in the
performance assessment sheet in compliance with SEC’s requirements. No sanctions have been imposed on any
director, officer or employee on account of non-compliance.
As of May 31 2014, all BHI directors have attended the seminar on corporate governance. There were no major
deviations from the Company’s Manual of Corporate Governance. The Company has adopted in the Manual of
Corporate Governance the leading practices and principles of good corporate governance, and full compliance
therewith has been made since the adoption of the Manual. Per SEC Memorandum Circular No. 20, series of
43
17-A 05/31/2014

2013, starting 2014 all members of the board of directors and key officers of publicly listed companies to attend
corporate governance trainings only with SEC accredited training providers.
The Company implemented the guidelines as regards to business conduct affecting director, senior management
and employees as to area of whistle blower. Illegal or unethical behavior by a colleague or co-employee,
regardless of his or her level of authority, should not be condoned. It is the responsibility of each employee to
report legitimate concerns so that problems can be properly resolved and corrective measures instituted. An
officer or employee who becomes aware of any violation on Code of Ethics should immediately notify his
Department/Division Head. The Division/Department Head shall in turn immediately inform the President and
CEO. The President and CEO shall conduct or manage the necessary actions or investigation of any reported
violations of this Code. In case Senior Management or any Board Member is involved, the same shall be referred
to the Audit Committee.
Among measures undertaken by the Company in order to fully comply with the provisions of the leading practices
on good corporate governance adopted in its Manual on Corporate Governance are monitoring and evaluation of
the internal control system for corporate governance. The Board of Directors regularly reviews the Manual to
ensure that the same remains relevant and is responsive to the needs of the organization. The Company is
committed to good corporate governance and continues to improve and enhance its evaluation system for
purposes of determining the level of compliance by the Company with its Manual on Corporate Governance.
The Company is taking further steps to enhance adherence to principles and practices of good corporate
governance.

Board Attendance
The Board’s primary objectives are to improve shareholder returns, to develop responsible long-term investors,
and to achieve disciplined and sustainable growth.
As of December 31, 2013, the Board held six (6) special meetings. Below is the summary report of the
attendance of the members of the BHI Board.

Special Board Meeting 2013
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Directors
Jose Marcel Panlilio
Lorenzo R. Tanada III
Christopher M. Gotanco
Ricardo S. Pascua
Reynaldo Y. Maulit
Victor V. Benavidez
Alfonso S. Anggala
Joselito V. Cabrera
Goran Carl Perning

Feb 14
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

April 25
/
x
/
/
/
/
/
x
/

44
17-A 05/31/2014

September 20
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

November 29
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

December 19
/
X
/
X
/
/
/
/
/

%
100
60
100
80
100
100
100
80
100

PART VI – EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(a) Exhibits – See accompanying Index to Supplementary Schedules (Exhibit A)
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference in this report:
-

2014 Consolidated Financial Statements: Boulevard Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Exhibit B)

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C
The following current reports have been conveyed by Boulevard Holdings, Inc. to SEC and PSE during the last
six months covered by this report through official disclosure letters dated:
Date
11/05/2013
11/11/2013
11/28/2013
11/29/2013
12/12/2013
12/12/2013
01/07/2014
01/30/2014
02/03/2014
02/20/2014
02/20/2014
03/07/2014
03/07/2014

03/14/2014
03/14/2014
03/18/2014
03/19/2014
03/21/2014
03/27/2014
04/03/2014

Disclosure Details
SEC approval of amendment to Articles of Incorporation re: removal of pre-emptive rights
Update on Puerto Azul projects
Emergency Special Board Meeting on November 29, 2013
Results of Meeting of the Board of Directors amendment to Terms of Reference executed with
Ayala Land Inc.
Execution of agreement with JP Guilds, Inc. for the final tranche of subscription
Consolidated sales report of products and service of Boulevard Holdings, Inc for the month of
November 2013 and the six-months period ended November 30, 2013 as compared to same
period last year.
Consolidated sales report of products and service of Boulevard Holdings, Inc for the month of
December and the seven-months period ended December 31, 2013 as compared to same period
last year.
Board of attendance of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2013
BHI General Information Sheet for the period covered October 311, 2013
Consolidated sales of product and services of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. for the month of January
2014 and the eight-months period ended January 31, 2014 as compared to same period last year
Updated disclosures of Mr. Jose Marcel Panlilio, Chairman and CEO of BHI regarding Friday’s
Holdings, Inc. owner and operator of Friday’s Boracay Resort and ALI BHI deal to BHI
shareholders
Consolidated sales of products and services of BHI for the month of February 2014 and the ninemonths period ended February 28, 2014
Conduct of annual stockholders’ meeting (“ASM”) on April 29, 2014 at 11:00 a.m. at Paranaque
AB Function Room, GF Makati Shangri La Hotel
Results of Board of Director’s special meeting
a) Grant of authority to enter into financial arrangements with banks up to total amount of
Php250 million with BHI’s Chairman and President/CEO, Mr. Jose Marcel Panlilio, as the
authorized signatory, for the property acquisition/construction projects or subsidiaries in Friday’s
Boracay Beach Resort (Friday’s Holdings, Inc.) in Brgy. Balabag, Municipal of Malay, Island of
Boracay, Aklan
Acquisition/or Disposition of Assets - Cala Paniman, Inc.
Agreement to sell to Ayala land, Inc. certain parcels of land in Ternate, Cavite
Clarifications from previous disclosure on BHI ALI agreement
Clarification on news report on BHI-ALI agreement quoted on news article
Preliminary Information Statement
Compliance Report on Corporate Governance
Important information regarding BHI assets and events:
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04/04/2014
04/07/2014
04/16/2014
04/30/2014
04/30/2014
05/30/2014

1) Continued Bad News from Friday’s Holdings. Inc. (FHI);
2) Ayala Land Inc. – BHI update;
3) One More BHI Resort Deal; and
4) Friday’s Boquete Resort in Puerto Galera Muelle Lagoon
Definitive Information Statement
Certification of Independent Director Ricardo S. Pascua and Director Reynaldo Y. Maulit
Consolidated	
   sales	
   of	
   products	
   and	
   services	
   of	
   BHI	
   for	
   the	
   month	
   of	
   March	
   2014	
   and	
   the	
  
ten-‐month	
  period	
  ended	
  March	
  31,	
  2014
Results of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
Results of organizational meeting of Board of Directors
Amendments to Articles of Incorporation specifying the principal office of the company from
"Metro Manila" to "1704 Peak Tower, 107 L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, Makati City"
Consolidated	
   sales	
   of	
   products	
   and	
   services	
   of	
   BHI	
   for	
   the	
   month	
   of	
   April	
   	
   2014	
   and	
   the	
  
eleven-‐month	
  period	
  ended	
  April	
  30,	
  2014

(c) Reports on SEC Form 17-C, as amended (during the last 6 months)
None
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Boulevard Holdings, Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
As at May 31, 2014 and 2013
And for the Years Ended May 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
and
Independent Auditors’ Report

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

Tel: (632) 891 0307
Fax: (632) 819 0872
ey.com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
December 28, 2012, valid until December 31, 2015
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-3 (Group A),
November 15, 2012, valid until November 16, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Boulevard Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at May 31, 2014 and
2013, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended May 31, 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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-2Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boulevard Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, and their
financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
May 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Alicia O. Lu
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0062493
SEC Accreditation No. 0661-AR-2 (Group A),
March 13, 2014, valid until March 12, 2017
Tax Identification No. 102-090-613
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-66-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 4225183, January 2, 2014, Makati City
September 26, 2014
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014

May 31, 2013
(As restated Note 2)

June 1, 2012
(As restated Note 2)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Note 4)
Trade and other receivables - net (Note 5)
Inventories (Note 6)
Prepayments and other current assets - net (Note 7)
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Investment properties - net (Note 9)
Property and equipment - net (Note 10)
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 17)
Other noncurrent assets - net (Note 11)
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

P
=2,480,684
48,001,276
1,348,123
33,871,699
85,701,782

P
=8,239,553
46,545,852
1,376,654
23,082,724
79,244,783

P
=32,257,231
46,440,503
1,544,636
6,475,601
86,717,971

926,514,072
382,392,268
3,266,193
471,142,744
1,783,315,277

928,320,203
313,662,495
3,609,239
417,732,019
1,663,323,956

930,126,334
164,047,424
2,901,634
358,857,648
1,455,933,040

P
=1,869,017,059

P
=1,742,568,739

P
=1,542,651,011

P
=170,408,314
9,153,668
169,000
179,730,982

P
=110,497,643
8,991,747
167,000
119,656,390

P
=151,102,295
3,708,422
126,000
154,936,717

9,392,486

10,879,200

8,851,200

1,200,000,000
612,094,337
104,047,657

983,389,356
505,566,933
104,104,326

796,685,341
352,890,692
104,062,173

(160,048)
(348,686,975)
19,736,804
1,587,031,775
92,861,816
1,679,893,591

(1,905,688)
(105,000,000)
32,260,544
1,518,415,471
93,617,678
1,612,033,149

(1,577,437)
–
35,453,126
1,287,513,895
91,349,199
1,378,863,094

P
=1,869,017,059

P
=1,742,568,739

P
=1,542,651,011

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 12)
Income tax payable
Customers’ deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liability
Retirement benefits obligation (Note 13)
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Parent
Capital stock - =
P0.10 par value per share (Note 23)
Authorized - 12,000,000,000 common shares
Issued and subscribed - 12,000,000,000 and
9,833,893,557 common shares as at May 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Cumulative translation adjustments
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits
liability (Note 2)
Subscription receivables (Note 23)
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

2014
REVENUES (Notes 14 and 20)
Services
Sales
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Costs of sales and services (Note 14)
General, administrative and selling (Note 15)
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) - net
Rentals (Note 9)
Net interest cost on retirement benefit costs
Bank charges
Foreign exchange gains - net
Interest income (Note 4)
Gain on reversal of payables (Note 12)
Interest expense
Others - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISON FOR INCOME TAX - net (Note 17)
NET LOSS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

LOSS PER SHARE (Note 18)
Basic loss per share for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Parent

Years Ended May 31
2013
2012
(As restated (As restated Note 2)
Note 2)

P
=87,793,438
37,296,900
125,090,338

=87,183,109
P
37,059,463
124,242,572

=89,189,821
P
36,138,588
125,328,409

55,861,387
82,251,744
138,113,131

62,734,390
63,750,522
126,484,912

66,814,470
68,563,449
135,377,919

889,082
(562,100)
(162,415)
338,145
21,718
7,220,641
(388,137)
457,252
7,814,186

802,859
(520,200)
(125,273)
244,127
40,429
7,135,465
(29,541)
690,124
8,237,990

(12,767,488)

5,571,846

(1,811,520)

1,033,539

6,397,900

3,380,814

888,907
(589,650)
(134,055)
87,186
2,917
–
–
_–
255,305

(P
=13,801,027)

(P
=826,054)

(P
=5,192,334)

(P
=12,523,740)
(1,277,287)
(P
=13,801,027)

(P
=3,192,582)
2,366,528
(P
=826,054)

(P
=5,022,273)
(170,061)
(P
=5,192,334)

(P
=0.0012)

(P
=0.0004)

(P
=0.0007)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2014
NET LOSS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) TO
BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN
SUBSEQUENT PERIODS, NET OF TAX
Cumulative translation adjustment
Assignment of available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets (Note 8)
Income tax effect
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) NOT
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS, NET OF TAX
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits
obligation (Note 13)
Income tax effect
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS),
NET OF TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

(P
=13,801,027)

Years Ended May 31
2013
2012
(As restated - (As restated Note 2)
Note 2)
(P
=826,054)

(P
=5,192,334)

(80,999)

60,219

(12,140)

24,300
(56,699)

(18,066)
42,153

36,145,444
(10,839,991)
25,293,313

3,238,664
(971,599)
2,267,065

(609,000)
182,700
(426,300)

(2,926,600)
877,980
(2,048,620)

2,210,366

(384,147)

23,244,693

(P
=11,590,661)

(P
=1,210,201)

P
=18,052,359

(P
=10,313,344)
(1,277,287)
(P
=11,590,631)

(P
=3,558,472)
2,348,271
(P
=1,210,201)

=18,222,420
P
(170,061)
=18,052,359
P

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent

Balances at May 31, 2011, as previously stated
Effect of remeasurement on retirement plan asset
from adoption of revised PAS 19 (Note 2)
Balances at May 31, 2011, as restated
Issuance of shares of stock
Transaction costs on issuance of shares of stocks
Net loss
Assignment of AFS financial assets (Note 8)
Cumulative translation loss
Total comprehensive gain (loss) for the year
Balances at May 31, 2012, as restated
Balances at May 31, 2012, as previously stated
Effect of remeasurement on retirement plan asset
from adoption of revised PAS 19 (Note 2)
Balances at May 31, 2012, as restated
Issuance of shares of stock (Note 23)
Subscriptions receivable (Note 23)
Transaction costs on issuance of
shares of stocks (Note 23)
Net income (loss)
Cumulative translation gain
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits
liability (Note 13)
Total comprehensive gain (loss) for the year
Balances at May 31, 2013, as restated
(Forward)

Unrealized Remeasurement
Valuation Loss
Gain (Loss)
on AFS on Retirement Subscription
Financial Assets Benefits Liability
Receivables
(Note 8) (Notes 2 and 13)
(Note 23)
(P
= 25,301,811)
P
=–
P
=–

Capital Stock
(Note 23)
P
=750,000,000

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
(Note 23)
P
=300,000,000

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustments
P
=104,070,671

–
750,000,000
46,685,341
–
–
–
–
–
P
=796,685,341

–
300,000,000
53,314,659
(423,967)
–
–
–
–
P
=352,890,692

–
104,070,671
–
–
–
–
(8,498)
(8,498)
P
=104,062,173

P
=796,685,341

P
=352,890,692

P
=104,062,173

P
=–

–
796,685,341
186,704,015
–

–
352,890,692
153,295,985
–

–
104,062,173
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
42,153

–
–
–

–
42,153
P
=104,104,326

–
–
P
=–

–
–
–
–
–
P
=983,389,356

(619,744)
–
–
–
–
P
=505,566,933

–
(25,301,811)
–
–
–
25,301,811
–
25,301,811
P
=–

(1,577,437)
(1,577,437)
–
–
–
–
–
–
(P
= 1,577,437)
P
=–

(471,183)
91,519,260
–

Total
P
=1,261,234,702

(5,022,273)
(170,061)
–
–
–
–
(5,022,273)–
(170,061)
P
=35,453,126 P
=91,349,199

(2,048,620)
1,259,186,082
100,000,000
(423,967)
(5,192,334)
25,301,811
(8,498)
20,100,979
P
=1,378,863,094

P
=–

P
=35,453,126

P
=1,380,911,714

–
–
–

–
40,475,399
–

Noncontrolling
Interests
P
=91,990,443

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=–

(1,577,437)
–
(1,577,437)
–
–
–
– (105,000,000)
–
–

Retained
Earnings
P
=40,475,399

P
=91,820,382

–
35,453,126
–
–

(471,183)
91,349,199
–
–

–
(3,253,705)
–

–
2,348,271
–

(328,251)
–
61,123
(328,251)
–
(3,192,582)
(P
= 1,905,688) (P
= 105,000,000) P
=32,260,544

(79,792)
2,268,479
P
=93,617,678

(2,048,620)
1,378,863,094
340,000,000
(105,000,000)
(619,744)
(905,434)
42,153
(346,920)
(1,210,201)
P
=1,612,033,149
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013

Balances at May 31, 2013, as previously stated
Effect of remeasurement on retirement plan asset
from adoption of revised PAS 19 (Note 2)
Balances at May 31, 2013, as restated
Issuance of shares of stock (Note 23)
Subscriptions receivable (Note 23)
Transaction costs on issuance of
shares of stocks (Note 23)
Net loss
Cumulative translation loss
Remeasurement gain on retirement benefits
liability (Note 13)
Total comprehensive gain (loss) for the year
Balances at May 31, 2014

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Unrealized Remeasurement
Valuation Loss
Gain (Loss)
Cumulative
on AFS
on Retirement Subscription
Translation Financial Assets Benefits Liability Receivables
Adjustments
(Note 8)
(Note 2)
(Note 23)
P
=104,104,326
P
=–
P
=– (P
= 105,000,000)

Capital Stock
(Note 23)
P
=983,389,356

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
(Note 23)
P
=505,566,933

–
983,389,356
216,610,644
–

–
505,566,933
108,305,320
–

–
104,104,326
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–

(1,777,916)
–
–

–
–
(56,669)

–
–
–

–
–
P
=1,200,000,000

–
–
P
=612,094,337

–
(56,669)
P
=104,047,657

–
–
P
=–

(1,905,688)
–
(1,905,688) (105,000,000)
–
–
– (243,686,975)

Retained
Earnings
P
=32,199,421

Noncontrolling
Interests
Total
P
=94,168,653 P
=1,614,428,689

61,123
32,260,544
–
–

(550,975)
93,617,678
–
–

(2,395,540)
1,612,033,149
324,915,964
(243,686,975)

–
–
–

–
(12,523,740)
–

–
(1,277,287)
–

(1,777,916)
(13,801,027)
(56,669)

1,745,640
–
1,745,640
–
(P
= 160,048) (P
= 348,686,975)

–
(12,523,740)
P
=19,736,804

–
–
–

521,425
2,267,065
(755,862)
(11,590,631)
P
=92,861,816 P
=1,679,893,591

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before taxes
Adjustments for:
Depreciation (Notes 9 and 10)
Movement in retirement benefit obligation (Note 13)
Net interest cost on retirement benefit costs (Note 13)
Loss (gain) on:
Disposal of property and equipment (Note 10)
Reversal of payables
Interest income (Note 4)
Interest expense
Reversal of customers’ deposits
Operating income (loss) before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables
Customers’ deposits
Net cash flows generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment (Note 10)
Increase in other noncurrent assets
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock:
Par value (Note 23)
Premium paid in excess of par (Note 23)
Transaction costs
Deposits for future stock subscription (Note 23)
Decrease in obligations under finance lease
Net cash flows from financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR (Note 4)

Years Ended May 31
2013
2012
(As restated - (As restated Note 2)
Note 2)
=5,571,846
P

(P
=1,811,520)

8,339,473
1,162,300
589,650

8,040,919
856,900
562,100

11,521,045
668,800
520,200

1,350,823
–
(2,917)
–
–
(1,328,159)

–
(7,220,641)
(21,718)
388,137
–
8,177,543

(533,903)
(7,135,465)
(40,429)
29,541
(151,623)
3,066,646

(1,455,424)
28,531
(10,809,231)

(105,349)
167,982
(16,874,422)

16,863,772
1,185,780
(201,877)

59,910,671
2,000
46,348,388
(1,479,915)
2,917
–
44,871,390

12,613,629
41,000
4,020,383
(1,372,181)
21,718
–
2,669,920

3,460,781
(1,582,422)
22,792,680
(9,886,426)
5,596
(426,218)
12,485,632

(P
=12,767,488)

(76,613,938)
(53,410,725)
–
(130,024,663)

(155,849,859) (19,430,945)
(58,874,371) (109,031,936)
–
545,000
(214,724,230) (127,917,881)

54,152,660
27,076,329
(1,777,916)
–
–
79,451,073

60,048,657
128,565,566
(619,744)
–
–
187,994,479

46,685,341
52,890,692
–
46,385,777
(152,972)
145,808,838

(5,702,200)
(56,669)

(24,059,831)
42,153

30,376,589
(8,498)

8,239,553

32,257,231

1,889,140

P
=2,480,684

=
P8,239,553

P
=32,257,231

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BOULEVARD HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations
Corporate Information
Boulevard Holdings, Inc. (the “Parent Company”) was incorporated with the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on July 13, 1994 primarily to invest in, purchase, or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, develop, sell, assign, among others, real and personal
property of every kind and description. The Parent Company has investments in companies
involved in the development of leisure, hotel and tourist estates, as well as residential and office
condominiums, operation and management of hotels and resorts, travel related and other allied
businesses and services in the Philippines and abroad.
On April 29, 2014, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company approved the resolution
for the amendment of the Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation specifying the principal
office of the Parent Company from “Metro Manila” to “1704 Peak Tower, 107 L.P. Leviste St.,
Salcedo Village, Makati City”. The change of the address was approved by the SEC on
September 10, 2014.
The registered office address of the Parent Company is Unit 1704 Peak Tower, 107 L.P. Leviste
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.
Segment Information
The Parent Company and Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) operates primarily
in segments of providing world-class hotel and resort amenities and investment holding
(see Note 22).
Status of Operations of Subsidiaries
a. Askar Ltd. has a previous lease agreement with Grand International Airways (GIA), an
affiliate, involving two aircrafts the former owns. The agreement was for a period of thirty-six
(36) months which ended on August 1, 2000 and required the lessee to pay the lessor a
monthly rental of US$90,000 for each aircraft. Askar did not renew its lease agreement with
GIA on expiry date as the latter has indefinitely suspended its operations due to operational
and financial difficulties and has not resumed its operations as at May 31, 2014.
b. Infocast has not yet started commercial operations and its business prospects are uncertain.
c. Friday’s Holdings, Inc. (FHI) owns and operates Friday’s Boracay Beach Resort, a luxury
resort situated in Boracay Island that offers 52 rooms and facilities and amenities such as
restaurants, function halls and other tourist-oriented activities. The Parent Company
effectively owns 77.00% of FHI through Crown One Land, Inc. (COLI).
On February 14, 2014, a dispute arose between FHI and the heir of a lessor regarding the
possession of the land where the resort is located. Stipulation of the lease contract states the
transfer of ownership of the land upon consummation. The lease contract was consummated
on February 14, 2014. However, as an act of dishonoring the contract, the heir of the lessor
barricaded a portion of FHI’s beach resort in defense that the contract was void at the very
beginning.
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-2To counter this action, FHI filed a criminal case for usurpation of property as well as a civil
case for forcible entry with a TRO to remove the barricades built.
As at May 31, 2014, the criminal and civil case is still pending with the courts.
On July 18, 2014, the Municipal Circuit Trial Court of Buruanga-Malay issued a Writ of
Preliminary Injunction, ordering the lessor to vacate the premises.
d. COLI is engaged in the real estate business and currently owns 44% of FHI. COLI’s assets
only relate to its investment in FHI. The Parent Company controls the financial and operating
policies of COLI by virtue of a shareholders’ agreement by the minority shareholders in favor
of the Parent Company, and that majority of the Board of Directors (BOD) of COLI are the
same as that of the Parent Company.
e. FPGI is currently constructing a luxurious native style boutique resort in the exclusive
Boquete Island in Puerto Galera, Oriental Mindoro, aiming to replicate the success of the
original Friday’s Resort in Boracay. Effective June 1, 2008, the Parent Company recognized
its 45.46% investment in FPGI by contributing parcels of land previously classified as
investment property in the Parent Company statement of financial position amounting to
P
=50.00 million. The contribution of minority shareholders amounting to P
=61.21 million also
represents parcels of land. The Parent Company controls the financial and operating policies
of FPGI by virtue of a shareholders’ agreement by the minority shareholders in favor of the
Parent Company, and that majority of the BOD of FPGI are also the BOD of the Parent
Company.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the years ended May 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on September 26, 2014.

2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting and
Financial Reporting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest peso, except as otherwise
indicated.
The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period. In addition, the Group presents an additional consolidated statement of financial position
at the beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an
accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in consolidated
financial statements. An additional consolidated statement of financial position as at June 1, 2012
is presented in these consolidated financial statements due to retrospective application of PAS 19,
Employee Benefits (Revised 2011) as discussed below in changes in accounting policies and
disclosures. The specific accounting policies followed by the Group are disclosed in the following
section.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).
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-3Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and the following subsidiaries as at May 31, 2014 and 2013:

Subsidiary
Askar (a), (c)
Infocast (b), (c)
FHI (e)
COLI (d), (e)
FPGI (d), (e)

Country of
Incorporation
British Virgin
Islands
Canada
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

Financial
Reporting
Period
May 31
December 31*
June 30
December 31*
April 30

Percentage of Ownership
2013
2014
Direct
Indirect
Direct Indirect
–
100.00
– 100.00
100.00
55.00
50.00
45.46

–
22.00
–
–

100.00
55.00
50.00
45.46

–
22.00
–
–

* for consolidation purposes, additional financial information of Infocast and COLI were prepared as of the same date as the
financial statements of the Parent Company
(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)

No longer operating
Pre-operating stage
Foreign subsidiaries
Parent Company exercises power to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of a
shareholders’ agreement by the minority shareholders in favor of the Parent Company
Majority of the BOD subsidiary’s are also BOD of the Parent Company

An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Thus, the principle of control sets out the following three elements of control:
·
·
·

Power to direct relevant activities
Exposure or rights to variable returns
Link between power and exposure

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease
to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Parent Company has control.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared with different reporting year not longer
than three (3) months as the Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
Non-controlling Interest
Non-controlling interest represents interest in a subsidiary that is not owned, directly or indirectly,
by the Parent Company. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the noncontrolling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.
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-4Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the
Group. Transactions with non-controlling interest are accounted for using the entity concept
method, whereby the difference between the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired is recognized as an equity transaction.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;
Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
and Philippine Interpretations which were adopted at June 1, 2013:
·

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Government Loans
The amendments to PFRS 1 require first-time adopters to apply the requirements of PAS 20,
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, prospectively
to government loans existing at the date of transition to PFRS. However, entities may choose
to apply the requirement of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
and PAS 20 to government loans retrospectively if the information needed to do so had been
obtained at the time of initially accounting for those loans. These amendments are not
relevant to the Group.

·

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32. These
disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format
unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information.
This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities recognized at the end
of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
c) The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
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-5d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i.
Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii.
Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e) The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.
The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied and are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The amendments affect disclosures only and
have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
·

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in SIC 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine
which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27. The standard becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Disclosures related to the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries are in Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

·

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC 13, Jointly Controlled
Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to account
for jointly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation. Instead, jointly controlled
entities that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity
method. The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, and will not have an impact since the Group is not engaged in any joint
venture agreements.

·

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures related to consolidated financial statements that were
previously in PAS 27, as well as all the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31
and PAS 28, Investments in Associates. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new
disclosures are also required. The standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013. Disclosures related to the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are in
Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

·

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRSs for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS. PFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit
price. PFRS 13 also requires additional disclosures.
As a result of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Group re-assessed its policies for measuring fair
values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value
measurement of liabilities. The Group has assessed that the application of PFRS 13 has not
materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Group. Additional disclosures, where
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-6required, are provided in the individual notes relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair
values were determined. Fair value disclosures are provided in Note 20.
·

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) (Amendments)
The amendments to PAS 1 changes the grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that can be
reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) will be presented separately from items that will never be
recycled. The amendments affect presentation only and have no significant impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance.

·

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised)
The revised standard includes a number of amendments that range from fundamental changes
such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to
simple clarifications and rewording. The revised standard also requires new disclosures such
as, among others, a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, information
on asset-liability matching strategies, duration of the defined benefit obligation, and
disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk. On January 1, 2013, the Group adopted the
revised standards retrospectively, with permitted exception on sensitivity disclosures for the
defined benefit obligation for the comparative period which have not been provided. For
defined benefit plans, the Revised PAS 19 requires all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognized in OCI and unvested past service costs previously recognized over the average
vesting period to be recognized immediately in profit or loss when incurred.
Prior to adoption of the Revised PAS 19, the Group recognized actuarial gains and losses as
income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized gains and losses at the end of the
previous period exceeded ten percent (10%) of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of the plan assets and recognized unvested past service costs as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the average vesting period until the benefits become vested. Upon
adoption of the Revised PAS 19, the Group changed its accounting policy to recognize all
actuarial gains and losses in OCI and all past service costs in profit or loss in the period they
occur.
The Revised PAS 19 replaced the interest cost and expected return on plan assets with the
concept of net interest on defined benefit liability or asset which is calculated by multiplying
the net defined benefit liability or asset by the discount rate used to measure the employee
benefit obligation, each as at the beginning of the annual period, taking account of any
changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period.
The Revised PAS 19 also amended the definition of short-term employee benefits and requires
employee benefits to be classified as short-term based on expected timing of settlement rather
than the employee’s entitlement to the benefits. In addition, the Revised PAS 19 modifies the
timing of recognition for termination benefits. The modification requires the termination
benefits to be recognized at the earlier of when the offer cannot be withdrawn or when the
related restructuring costs are recognized.
Changes to definition of short-term employee benefits and timing of recognition for
termination benefits do not have any impact on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.
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-7The changes in accounting policies have been applied retrospectively. The effects of adoption
on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:
As at May 31, 2014
PAS19 R
Statements of financial position:
Retirement benefits obligation
Deferred income tax assets
Remeasurement loss on
retirement benefits liability
Retained earnings
Minority interest

P9,392,486
3,266,193
160,048
19,736,804
92,861,816
As at May 31, 2013
Increase
Old PAS 19
(decrease)

Statements of financial position:
Retirement benefits obligation
Deferred income tax assets
Remeasurement loss on
retirement benefits liability
Retained earnings
Minority interest

P7,457,000
2,582,579
–
32,199,421
94,168,653

Old PAS 19
Statements of financial position:
Retirement benefits obligation
Deferred income tax assets
Remeasurement loss on
retirement benefits liability
Minority interest

P5,924,600
2,023,654
–
91,820,382

P3,422,200
1,026,660
1,905,688
61,123
(550,975)
As at June 1, 2012
Increase
(decrease)
P2,926,600
877,980
1,577,437
(471,183)
2013

Statements of comprehensive income:
Retirement benefits expense
Provision for income tax
Net loss
Remeasurement loss on
retirement benefits liability
Income tax effects
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss

P10,879,200
3,609,239
1,905,688
32,260,544
93,617,678

PAS 19 R
P8,851,200
2,901,634
1,577,437
91,349,199
2012

=1,419,000
P
(425,700)
993,300

=1,189,000
P
(356,700)
832,300

609,000
(182,700)
426,300
=1,419,600
P

2,926,600
(877,980)
2,048,620
=2,880,920
P

2013
Statements of cash flows:
Income (loss) before income tax
Retirement benefit costs

PAS19 R

=5,458,446
P
1,419,000

2012
(P
=1,811,520)
1,189,000
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-8Change of presentation
Upon adoption of the Revised PAS 19, the presentation of the income statement was updated
to reflect these changes. Net interest is now shown under the finance income/expense line
item (previously under personnel expenses under general and administrative expenses). This
presentation better reflects the nature of net interest since it corresponds to the compounding
effect of the long-term net defined benefit liability (net defined benefit asset). In the past, the
expected return on plan assets reflected the individual performance of the plan assets, which
were regarded as part of the operating activities.
·

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
and PFRS 12 what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities, and associates in the separate financial statements. The adoption of the
amended PAS 27 will not have a significant impact on the separate financial statements of the
Group.

·

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 11, and PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures
in addition to associates. The amendment will not have a significant impact on the Group
since it does not have any investments in associates and joint ventures.

·

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining
activity, during the production phase of the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting
for the benefit from the stripping activity. This new interpretation is not relevant since the
Group is not engaged in mining operations.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
June 1, 2013 and are applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
·

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs
The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing
costs in accordance with its previous generally accepted accounting principles, may carry
forward, without any adjustment, the amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of
financial position at the date of transition. Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing
costs are recognized in accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment is not
applicable to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.

·

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the Requirements for
Comparative Information
The amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed
voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an accounting
policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the consolidated financial
statements. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the minimum required comparative period. The additional comparative period does
not need to contain a complete set of consolidated financial statements.
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-9On the other hand, supporting notes for the third balance sheet (mandatory when there is a
retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items in the financial statements) are not required. The amendments affect
disclosures only and will not have an impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
·

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment
The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should
be recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise. The amendment will
not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

·

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax Effect of Distribution to Holders of Equity
Instruments
The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12,
Income Taxes. The Group expects that this amendment will not have a significant impact on
its financial position or performance.

·

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information
for Total Assets and Liabilities
The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment
need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker and there has been a material change from the amount disclosed in the entity’s
previous annual financial statements for that reportable segment. The amendment affects
disclosures only and will not have an impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Group did not early adopt the following standards and Philippine Interpretation that will
become effective subsequent to May 31, 2014:
Effective subsequent to May 31, 2014:
·

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments)
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the disclosures
required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss has been
recognized or reversed during the period. These amendments are effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted,
provided PFRS 13 is also applied. The amendments affect disclosures only and have no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

·

Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27)
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
They provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires
investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. It is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group since none of the entities in the
Group would qualify to be an investment entity under PFRS 10.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be
anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The Group does not expect that
IFRIC 21 will have a material financial impact in future consolidated financial statements.

·

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. Adoption of this standard
will have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance since it has neither
derivatives nor hedge accounting transactions.

·

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off”
and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The amendments affect presentation only and have no
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

·

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments)
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as
reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service.
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans. The amendments to PAS 19 are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. It is expected
that this amendment will not have a significant impact in the Group’s financial position or
performance.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
· PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition
The amendment revised the definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added
the definitions of performance condition and service condition to clarify various issues. This
amendment shall be prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the
grant date is on or after July 1, 2014. This amendment does not apply to the Group as it has no
share-based payments.
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- 11 · PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination
The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in accordance with PAS 32.
Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of PFRS 9 (or PAS 39, if PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, is not yet adopted). This amendment does not apply to the Group as it
has no share-based payments.
· PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets
The amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating
two or more operating segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the
operating segments that have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that
have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar
economic characteristics. The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide
reconciliations of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets if such
amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.
The amendments affect disclosure only and will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance.
· PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables
The amendment clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group does
not expect that the amendment will have material financial impact in future consolidated
financial statements.
· PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation
The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be
treated in one of the following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.
b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendment has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
· PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel
The amendments clarify that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity,
or any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The
amendments also clarify that a reporting entity that obtains management personnel services
from another entity (also referred to as management entity) is not required to disclose the
compensation paid or payable by the management entity to its employees or directors. The
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- 12 reporting entity is required to disclose the amounts incurred for the key management personnel
services provided by a separate management entity. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The amendments
affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
· PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization
The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying amount of
the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the
following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.
b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.
The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendments have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
· PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
‘Effective PFRSs’
The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application, provided either standard
is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
statements. This amendment is not applicable to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter of
PFRS.
· PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements
The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
This amendment is not applicable since the Group is not engaged in any joint arrangements.
· PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception
The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial
assets, financial liabilities and other contracts. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment has no
significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
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- 13 · PAS 40, Investment Property
The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3, Business Combination, and
PAS 40 when classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The
amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business combination
within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3. This
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied
prospectively. The amendment has no significant impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.
To be determined
·

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first and third phases of the project to replace PAS 39 and
applies to the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hedge
accounting, respectively. Work on the second phase, which relate to impairment of financial
instruments, and the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model is still
ongoing, with a view to replace PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to
be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value
option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a
business model that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows
and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss.
Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For liabilities designated as at FVPL using the fair value option, the amount of change in the
fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI.
The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change relating to the entity’s own credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward to PFRS 9, including the
embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the
first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.
On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of PAS 39
with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge
effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk on that
economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not
only for financial items, but also for non-financial items, provided that the risk component is
separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of an option, the
forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded
from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.
PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and
impairment methodology. The Group will not adopt the standard before the completion of the
limited amendments and the second phase of the project.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under
PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is
recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the
construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The
SEC and the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of
this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard
against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed but will have not have
a significant impact since the Group is not engaged in the construction of real estate.

Except for the Revised PAS 19, the Group does not expect any significant impact in the
consolidated financial statements when it adopts the above standards and interpretations. The
revised, amended and additional disclosures or accounting changes provided by the standards and
interpretations will be included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the year of
adoption, if applicable.
Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies
Presentation of Income
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements: a
statement displaying components of profit or loss, and a second statement beginning with profit or
loss and displaying components of other comprehensive income.
Cash
Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise of cash on hand and cash in
banks, which earn interest at their respective bank deposit rates.
Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition
Financial instruments within the scope of PAS 39 are recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date (i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset). Financial instruments are
recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of all financial instruments, except for financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL).
Financial Assets
Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and
receivables, AFS financial assets, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
As at May 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s financial assets are of the nature of loans and
receivables. There were no financial assets at FVPL, AFS financial assets, HTM investments and
derivative designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge.
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- 15 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVPL, derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax.
The Group’s financial liabilities are of the nature of loans and borrowings. As at May 31, 2014
and 2013, the Group has no outstanding financial liabilities at FVPL and derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge.
Financial Instruments - Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification as follows:
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which normally pertains to the billable
amount. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less allowance for impairment losses.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization, if any, is included in the “Interest
income” in the consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment of
receivables are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The level of allowance for
impairment losses is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility
of accounts (see accounting policy on Impairment of Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost).
Loans and receivables are classified as current when they are expected to be realized within twelve
(12) months from the reporting date or within the normal operating cycle, whichever is longer.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables include cash, trade and other receivables, and other noncurrent
assets under “Other noncurrent assets” (see Notes 4, 5 and 11).
Loans and Borrowings
Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not designated as at FVPL upon
inception of the liability or not as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge.
After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in “Interest
expense” in the consolidated statement of income.
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- 16 Loans and borrowings are included under current liabilities if it will be settled within twelve (12)
months after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
liabilities.
The Group’s loans and borrowings include trade and other payables (see Note 12).
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Group’s
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Group statement of financial
position.
Determination of Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
·
·

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
Financial instruments recognized at fair value are analyzed based on:
·
·
·

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical asset or liability
Level 2 - Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices)
Level 3 - Those with inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

When fair values of listed equity and debt securities as well as publicly traded derivatives at the
end of the reporting date are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer price quotations
without any deduction for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the
hierarchy.
For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using other valuation techniques.
Other valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist, option pricing models and other relevant
valuation models. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are market observable and
are therefore included within Level 2.
Instruments included in Level 3 include those for which there is currently no active market.
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- 17 Further details as to how they are measures are provided in Note 21.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original EIR.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Loans and receivables, together with the
associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.
Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:
·
·
·

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has neither transferred
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- 18 nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out method. NRV of saleable merchandise is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. NRV of
general, operating and engineering supplies is the estimated current replacement cost.
Prepayments and Other Current Assets
Prepayments and other current assets include input valued-added tax (VAT), creditable
withholding taxes (CWT) and various prepayments which the Company expects to realize or
consume within twelve (12) months after the end of the reporting period.
Input VAT
Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Company by its suppliers and contractors for the
acquisition of goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and regulations. Input
VAT representing claims for refund from the taxation authorities is recognized as a current asset
and is stated at its NRV.
Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties,
except land, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value, if any.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
investment properties, except land. Investments in depreciable condominium units classified as
investment properties are depreciated over twenty-five (25) years.
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- 19 Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the consolidated statement income in the year of retirement or
disposal.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another
party or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property
when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owneroccupation or commencement of development with a view to sale.
For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the
deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If the property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in use. For a transfer from
inventories to investment property, any difference between the fair value of the property at
that date and its previous carrying amount is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-constructed
investment property, any difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment when that cost is
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met. Land is measured at cost less any impairment in
value.
The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to the consolidated statement of income in
the period in which costs are incurred.
Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property
and equipment as follows:
Asset
Condominium units and improvements
Building and building equipment
Office equipment
Transportation equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Glassware

Years
25
2-10
5
5
1-7 (2-7 in 2013)
3-5
5
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- 20 Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, property and
equipment and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and becomes available for use.
The assets’ useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
values, periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment at each end of the reporting
period.
Depreciation of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for use, i.e., when it is
in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Depreciation ceases when the assets are fully depreciated or at the earlier of the date
that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in the disposal group that is classified as
held for sale) in accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, and the date the item is derecognized.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Impairments or losses of items of property and equipment, related claims for or payments of
compensation from third parties and any subsequent purchase or construction of replacement
assets are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the books when still in use. When assets are sold or
retired, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment
value are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is
included in the consolidated statement of income.
Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets include various deposits, long-term receivables and miscellaneous assets,
which are stated at net realizable value. These are classified as noncurrent since the Group
expects to utilize the assets beyond twelve (12) months from the end of the reporting period.
Deposits for Future Stock Subscriptions
This represents advance payments for subscription of future issuance of shares which shall be
reclassified to the corresponding investment account upon issuance.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Inventories
The Group assesses the inventories for impairment by comparing the asset’s carrying value with
its NRV. If the asset is impaired, its carrying value is reduced to NRV and an impairment loss is
recognized in the comprehensive statement of income.
Prepayments and Other Current and Noncurrent Assets, Excluding Other Noncurrent Receivables
The Group provides allowance for impairment losses on prepayments and other current and
noncurrent assets, excluding other noncurrent receivables, when they can no longer be realized.
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made
different judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance for impairment losses
would increase recorded expenses and decrease prepayments and other current and noncurrent
assets.
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- 21 Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years for inventories, prepayments and other
current and noncurrent assets, excluding other noncurrent receivables, is recorded when there is an
indication that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased.
The recovery is recorded in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased
carrying amount of an asset due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no
impairment loss recognized for that asset in prior years.
Investment Properties and Property and Equipment
Investment properties and property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is written down to its recoverable amount. The
estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in
use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s
length transaction less the costs of disposal while value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Recovery of impairment loss recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that
the impairment loss recognized for the asset no longer exists or has decreased. The recovery is
recorded in the statement of income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due to a
recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss
been recognized for that asset in prior years.
Deposits for Future Stock Subscriptions
Deposits for future stock subscriptions as asset represents advance payments for subscription of
future issuance of shares which shall be reclassified to the corresponding investment account upon
issuance.
Deposits for future stock subscriptions as liability pertains to amount of cash received as payment
for future issuance of stocks. This is classified as an equity instrument when the Group will deliver
a fixed number of its own equity instruments in exchange for a fixed number of cash or another
financial asset. Otherwise, it is classified under liabilities.
Customers’ Deposits
Customers’ deposits are advance payments from lessees for lease of condominium units of the
Parent Company. Subsequently, customers’ deposits are charged and service revenues are
recognized upon the rendering of service or as contracted.
Retirement Benefit Costs
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and
losses for the plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are
recognized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in
the plan.

*SGVFS008564*

- 22 The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense (including items previously
presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity) that are not recognized in the
consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS.
Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital
Common shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new common stock are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The excess of proceeds from issuance of shares over the
par value of shares are credited to additional paid-in capital.
Cumulative Translation Adjustments
This arises from exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Parent
Company's net investment in a foreign operation. In the consolidated financial statements, such
exchange differences shall be recognized initially in OCI. On the disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, shall be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.
Unrealized Valuation Loss on AFS Financial Assets
The change in the fair value of the AFS financial assets is recorded as “Unrealized valuation loss
on AFS financial assets” in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend
contributions, prior period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital
adjustments. When retained earnings account has a debit balance, it is called “Deficit”. A deficit
is not an asset but a deduction from equity.
Retained earnings may also include effect of changes in accounting policy as may be required by
the standard’s transitional provisions.
Subscriptions Receivable
Subscriptions receivable pertains to the unpaid portion of the subscribed capital stock which
reduces the outstanding balance of capital stock.
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Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. The Group has concluded that it is
the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue
arrangements, has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services
Sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership of the goods,
usually upon delivery of the goods, have passed to the buyers and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue from services are recognized upon performance of the services to the
customers.
Rental Income
Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective yield on the
asset (using EIR method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instruments to the carrying amount of the financial
assets).
Expenses
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows
or decrease in assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those
relating to distributions to equity participants.
Costs of Sales and Services
Costs of sales are recognized when the goods are sold to the customers, cost of sales includes the
cost of inventories. Cost of services are recognized when the related services have been rendered.
General, Administrative and Selling Expenses
Expenses incurred in the direction and general administration of day-to-day operations of the
Group are generally recognized when the service is used or the expense arises.
Leases
Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after the inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;
c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or
d. There is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
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- 24 Operating Lease - Group as a Lessor
Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the
assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same bases as the rental income.
Finance Lease - Group as a Lessee
Finance lease, which transfers to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, is capitalized from the date of lease agreement at the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly against the consolidated statement of income.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Foreign Currency Transactions
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Group’s,
functional and presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in
Philippine peso based on the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange
rate differences arising from the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the
period in which they arise. At year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated at closing rate and any exchange differentials are credited to or charged
against the consolidated income, except for foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of assets and liabilities and income accounts of Askar and Infocast which are taken
directly to a separate component of stockholders’ equity. The functional currency of Askar and
Infocast is United States Dollar (US$).
At the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of Askar and Infocast are translated
into the presentation currency of the Parent Company using the Philippine Dealing System (PDS)
closing rate at the end of the reporting period and their respective statements of income are
translated using the PDS weighted average exchange rate for the year. The exchange differences
arising from the translation are taken directly to a separate component of stockholders’ equity,
under the “Cumulative translation adjustments” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
Income Taxes
Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The income tax rates
and income tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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- 25 Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of unused NOLCO and excess MCIT can be utilized, except:
·

where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

·

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except:
·

where deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

·

in respect to taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax
assets are reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax assets to
be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is also
recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of income.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and deferred
income taxes related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of
any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement of income.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Events After the End of the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at
the end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.
Business Segments
For management purposes, the Group is organized into two (2) major business segments (holding
company and hospitality and leisure) according to the nature of the products and services
provided. The Group’s identified business segments are consistent with the segments reported to
the BOD which is the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker. Financial information of
operating segments is presented in Note 22.
Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding, after retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends and stock splits
declared during the year.
Diluted earnings per share amounts is calculated by dividing the net income for the year
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares
that would be issued for outstanding common stock equivalents.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires the Group to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to consolidated financial
statements. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments, estimates and assumptions
used in arriving the estimates to change the effects of any change in judgments and estimates are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.
The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the
date of the consolidated financial statements. However, actual results could differ from such
estimates.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:
Determining Functional Currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, the
functional currency of the Group has been determined to be generally the Philippine peso, except
for Askar and Infocast the functional currency of which are determined to be the US Dollar. The
Philippine peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
generally operates. It is the currency that mainly influences the sale of the goods and services and
the costs of selling goods and services.
Assessment Whether an Agreement is Finance or Operating Lease
Management assesses at the inception of the lease whether an arrangement is a finance lease or
operating lease based on who bears substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased items. Based on the management’s assessment, the Group has both finance and
operating leases.
Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessor
The Group has entered into residential property leases on its investment properties portfolio.
Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and are recognized over the lease term on the
same bases as rental income. Rental income amounted to =
P0.89 million in 2014 and 2013, and
=
P0.80 million in 2012, respectively (see Note 9).
Operating Lease Commitment - Group as Lessee
The Group has entered into leases of commercial spaces. The Group has determined that it does
not acquire all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property which is leased on an
operating lease. Rental expense amounted to =
P3.28 million, =
P3.96 million and P
=4.69 million in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 20).
Classification of Investment Properties
The Group follows the guidance of PAS 40 in classifying properties as investment properties.
This classification requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its
intention for holding the properties. The Group determines that, currently, the intention for

*SGVFS008564*

- 28 holding the properties is to earn rentals there from and for capital appreciation rather than to use
these in the production or supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes or sale in
the ordinary course of business (see Note 9).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainties at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as
follows:
Estimating Contingencies
The Group currently is a party to certain legal and other proceedings and claims. The Group’s
estimate of the probable costs for the legal and other proceedings and claims have been developed
in consultation with in-house as well as outside counsels handling the prosecution and defense of
these cases and are based upon an analysis of potential results. The Group currently does not
believe these legal and other proceedings and claims will have a material adverse effect on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that future results
of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of
strategies relating to these proceedings.
Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Trade and Other Receivables
The Group has set up allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables at a level
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance
is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.
These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the clients,
the clients’ payment behavior and known market factors. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgment or utilized different
estimates. An increase in the Group’s allowance for impairment losses on trade and other
receivables would increase the Group’s recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.
The carrying values of trade and other receivables amounted to P
=48.00 million and =
P46.55 million,
net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to P
=442.78 million and =
P439.38 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. There were no impairment losses recognized on trade and
other receivables in 2014, 2013 and 2012. Trade and other receivables written-off amounted to
P
=11.25 million and nil in 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 5).
Estimating Allowance for Inventory Losses
The Group maintains allowance for inventory losses whenever the value of inventories becomes
lower than its cost. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors
that affect the recoverability of the inventory. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
physical condition and location of inventories on hand, the fluctuations of price or cost directly
relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events confirm
conditions existing at the end of the period, and the purpose for which the inventory item is held.
The carrying values of inventories amounted to =
P1.35 million and =
P1.38 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. There were no impairment losses recognized on inventories
in 2014, 2013 and 2012 (see Note 6).
Estimating Allowance for Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each end of the reporting period to
identify indications that the Group’s assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may be decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable

*SGVFS008564*

- 29 amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
The Group assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group
considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
· significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;
· significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and
· significant negative industry or economic trends.
In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements.
These assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized
whenever evidence exists that the carrying value is not recoverable. For purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.
An impairment loss is recognized and charged to earnings if the discounted expected future cash
flows are less than the carrying amount. Fair value is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the risk-free rate of interest for a term
consistent with the period of expected cash flows.
Allowance for impairment losses follows:
Flight equipment
CWT
Miscellaneous assets

2014
P
=178,652,177
17,107
51,931,215
P
=230,600,499

2013
=178,652,177
P
1,807,758
51,931,215
=232,391,150
P

The carrying values of prepayments and other current assets amounted to P
=33.87 million and
P
=23.08 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Impairment losses recognized on
prepayments and other current assets amounted to nil in 2014 and 2013 and =
P1.80 million in 2012.
Prepayments and other current assets written-off amounted to P
=1.78 million and nil in 2014 and
2013, respectively (see Note 7).
The carrying values of investment properties amounted to P
=926.51 million and P
=928.32 million,
net of accumulated depreciation amounting to =
P19.99 million and =
P18.19 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 9).
The carrying values of property and equipment amounted to P
=382.39 million and P
=313.66 million,
net of accumulated depreciation amounting to =
P123.82 million and =
P117.67 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 10).
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- 30 The carrying values of other noncurrent assets, except for fully depreciated other noncurrent
receivables, amounted to =
P471.14 million and =
P417.73 million, net of allowance for impairment
losses, amounting to =
P51.93 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 11).
There were no impairment losses recognized on investment properties, property and equipment
and other noncurrent assets in 2014, 2013 and 2012 (see Notes 9, 10 and 11).
Estimating Useful Lives of Investment Properties and Property and Equipment, except Land, and
Flight Equipment
The estimated useful lives used as basis for depreciating the Group’s investment properties and
property and equipment, excluding land, and flight equipment were determined on the basis of
management’s assessment of the period within which the benefits of these asset items are expected
to be realized taking into account actual historical information on the use of such assets.
There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of investment properties and property and
equipment, excluding land, and flight equipment in 2014 and 2013, except for furniture and fixture
where its estimated useful life is reduced to one (1) to seven (7) years in 2014 from two (2) to
seven (7) years in 2013 as a result of management’s assessment that such assets’ actual useful
lives are generally shorter than the previously estimated useful lives for depreciation purposes.
The carrying values of investment properties, except for land, amounted to P
=26.51 million and
=
P28.32 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 9). The carrying values of
property and equipment, except land, amounted to P
=267.97 million and =
P199.24 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 10). The carrying values of flight equipment
amounted to nil as at May 31, 2014 and 2013 (see Note 11).
Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at each reporting period
and reduces it to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Recognized deferred income tax assets amounted to P
=3.27 million and =
P3.61 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Taxable temporary differences for which no deferred
income tax assets were recognized amounted to P
=817.82 million and =
P812.88 million as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, since management believes that it is not probable that
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the benefits of the deferred income
tax assets can be utilized (see Note 17).
Estimating Retirement Benefit Costs
The determination of the obligation and cost of pension and other retirement benefits is dependent
on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions are described in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, and include among
others, discount rates and salary increase rates. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ
from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. While the
Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement
benefit obligations.
Retirement benefit costs amounted to =
P1.75 million, =
P1.42 million and P
=1.19 million in 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P
=9.39 million and
=
P10.88 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 13).
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- 31 Estimating Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use
of accounting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence, (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized different
valuation methodologies and assumptions. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities would affect profit and loss and equity. Where the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from
active markets, they are determined using internal valuation techniques using generally accepted
market valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation
and volatility for longer dated derivatives. The fair values of the Group’s financial instruments
are presented in Note 21.

4. Cash
Cash on hand
Cash in banks

2014
P
=1,325,567
1,155,117
P
=2,480,684

2013
=1,075,006
P
7,164,547
=8,239,553
P

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income earned from cash
in banks and short-term investments amounted to P
=2,917, =
P21,718 and =
P40,429 in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively.
In 2012, the Group has short-term investments consisting of thirty (30) day time deposits that earn
an average interest of 2.38% per annum in 2012.

5. Trade and Other Receivables - net
Trade
Amounts owed by related parties (Note 19)
Others
Less: allowance for impairment losses

2014
P
=344,744,440
101,155,076
44,885,439
490,784,955
442,783,679
P
=48,001,276

2013
=330,573,333
P
112,009,935
43,338,265
485,921,533
439,375,681
=46,545,852
P

Trade receivables are normally due and demandable. These mainly pertain to Askar’s receivables
from third parties amounting to =
P342.64 million which is fully provided with allowance for
impairment losses in both years. FHI’s receivables from third parties was also provided with
allowance amounting to P
=0.21 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013.
Other receivables include long outstanding receivables from third party companies and receivables
from officers and employees which are subject to payroll deduction.

*SGVFS008564*

- 32 Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables which were
individually impaired are as follows:
Balances at beginning of year
Translation adjustment
Write-off (Note 20)
Balances at end of year

2014
P
=439,375,681
14,660,493
(11,252,495)
P
=442,783,679

2013
=450,280,906
P
(10,905,225)
–
=439,375,681
P

In 2014 and 2013, the Group has directly written off long-outstanding receivables, which are no
longer existing, amounting to nil and P
=0.59 million, respectively (see Note 15).
6. Inventories
At cost:
General supplies
Operating supplies
Beverage
Food
Others

2014

2013

P
=443,196
342,311
289,504
233,710
39,402
P
=1,348,123

=454,130
P
202,881
361,032
332,819
25,792
=1,376,654
P

Cost of inventories recorded as part of cost of sales amounted to P
=5.11 million, =
P19.38 million and
=
P20.77 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

7. Prepayments and Other Current Assets - net
Input VAT
Prepayments
CWT - net of impairment losses amounting
P
=17,107 and P
=1,801,758 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively

2014
P
=23,278,566
10,150,229

2013
=17,097,800
P
5,803,331

442,904
P
=33,871,699

181,593
=23,082,724
P

Input VAT represents VAT imposed by the Group’s suppliers for the acquisition of goods and
services as required by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations. Input VAT is used to offset
against the Group’s current output VAT liability.
Prepayments include prepaid legal fees, insurance, rent and dues and subscription. These are
charged to expense on a monthly basis and are expected to be settled within one (1) year.
CWTs are withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs will be utilized as
payment for income taxes.
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- 33 Movements in the allowance for impairment losses on prepayments and other current assets are as
follows:
2014
P
=1,801,758
(1,784,651)
P
=17,107

Balances at beginning of year
Write-off
Balances at end of year

2013
=1,801,758
P
–
P
=1,801,758

8. AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assets consist of investments in unlisted ordinary shares managed by a private
equity fund and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.
In 2011, the Group has assessed that there is a temporary decline in value of the AFS financial
assets amounting to P
=10.17 million. Unrealized valuation loss amounting to P
=25.30 million was
recognized as a separate component of equity as at May 31, 2011. As at May 31, 2011, the AFS
financial assets amounted to =
P5.66 million.
On April 18, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a Deed of Assignment to sell, transfer and
convey its AFS financial assets to JP Guilds, Inc., a related party (see Note 19).
9. Investment Properties - net
2014

Cost
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balances
Depreciation (Notes 14
and 15)
Ending balances
Net book values

Land
P
=900,000,000

Condominium
Units
P
=46,508,031

Total
P
=946,508,031

–

18,187,828

18,187,828

–
–
P
=900,000,000

1,806,131
19,993,959
P
=26,514,072

1,806,131
19,993,959
P
=926,514,072

Land
=900,000,000
P

Condominium
Units
=46,508,031
P

Total
=946,508,031
P

–

16,381,697

16,381,697

–
–
=900,000,000
P

1,806,131
18,187,828
=28,320,203
P

1,806,131
18,187,828
=928,320,203
P

2013

Cost
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balances
Depreciation (Notes 15
and 16)
Ending balances
Net book values
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- 34 The Parent Company has an investment property pertaining to parcels of land located in Barangay
Sapang, Ternate, Cavite, with a total land area of 1,066,012 square meters, to be used as site of the
proposed third Friday’s resort. The fair value of the land, which has been determined based on
valuations performed by an independent appraiser as at January 28, 2013, amounted to
P
=2.03 billion.
On March 13, 2014, the Parent Company has agreed to sell to Ayala Land, Inc. (ALI) certain
parcels of land located in Ternate, Cavite. The parties have initially valued the transaction at
P
=2.30 billion covering 946,012 square meters. This agreement is subject to a closing period in
order to obtain all requisite approvals, conduct of due diligence, and other conditions precedent to
closing the deal.
On August 14, 2014, BHI signed an agreement with ALI specifying the closing date of final
payment is on or before December 6, 2014.
On September 26, 2014, BHI received letters from ALI, cancelling, with finality, their request for
reconsideration in completing the ALI-BHI Puerto Azul Memorandum of Agreement dated
March 13, 2014 due to profit concerns. Management is currently considering resuming
negotiations with other interested parties that were put on hold due to the then on-going
negotiations with ALI.
Rental income earned from condominium units amounted to P
=0.89 million in 2014 and 2013.
Direct operating expenses (depreciation expense arising from investment properties that generated
rental income) amounted to P
=1.81 million in 2014 and 2013.
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- 35 10. Property and Equipment - net
2014
Condominium
Units and
Land Improvements
Cost:
Beginning balances
Additions
Disposal
Ending balances
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balances
Depreciation
(Notes 14 and 15)
Disposal
Ending balances
Net book values

Building and
Building
Equipment

Office Transportation
Equipment
Equipment

Furniture
and
Fixtures

Machinery
and
Equipment

Glassware

=
P114,420,000
–
–
114,420,000

=
P13,180,351
1,021,999
–
14,202,350

=
P105,379,737
–
–
105,379,737

=
P1,863,963
411,424
–
2,275,387

=
P12,105,307
3,236,315
–
15,341,622

P
=18,866,024
1,623,258
(1,737,799)
18,751,483

P
=3,849,632
261,429
–
4,111,061

=
P–
1,528,195
–
1,528,195

–

6,394,994

81,359,841

1,484,110

11,152,523

14,624,782

2,653,841

–

–
–
–
=
P114,420,000

611,466
–
7,006,460
=
P7,195,890

3,324,028
–
84,683,869
P
=20,695,868

285,943
–
1,770,053
=
P505,334

122,960
–
11,275,483
=
P4,066,139

1,571,863
(386,976)
15,809,669
=
P2,941,814

413,323
–
3,067,164
=
P1,043,897

203,759
–
203,759
=
P1,324,436

Land

Condominium
Units and
Improvements

Building and
Building
Equipment

Office
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Furniture
and
Fixtures

Machinery
and
Equipment

Glassware

=
P114,420,000
–
114,420,000

=
P13,180,351
–
13,180,351

P
=105,352,416
27,321
105,379,737

=
P1,711,624
152,339
1,863,963

P
=11,109,358
995,949
12,105,307

=
P15,356,801
3,509,223
18,866,024

P
=3,201,364
648,268
3,849,632

=
P–
–
–

–

5,837,160

77,533,198

1,277,816

10,522,665

13,902,207

2,362,257

–

–
–
=
P114,420,000

557,834
6,394,994
=
P6,785,357

3,826,643
81,359,841
P
=24,019,896

206,294
1,484,110
=
P379,853

629,858
11,152,523
=
P952,784

722,575
14,624,782
=
P4,241,242

291,584
2,653,841
P
=1,195,791

–
–
=
P–

Construction
in Progress

Total

=
P161,667,572 P
=431,332,586
68,531,318
76,613,938
–
(1,737,799)
230,198,890
506,208,725
–

117,670,091

–
6,533,342
–
(386,976)
–
123,816,457
=
P230,198,890 =
P382,392,268

2013

Cost:
Beginning balances
Additions
Ending balances
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balances
Depreciation
(Notes 14 and 15)
Ending balances
Net book values

Construction in
Progress

Total

=
P11,150,813 =
P275,482,727
150,516,759 155,849,859
161,667,572 431,332,586
–

111,435,303

–
6,234,788
– 117,670,091
=
P161,667,572 =
P313,662,495

There were no property and equipment that were retired from active use during the year. Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use in the
Company’s operations amounted to =
P84.81 million and =
P71.97 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Loss on disposal of property and
equipment is presented under “Cost of sales and services” in the consolidated statements of income amounting to P
=1.35 million and nil in 2014 and 2013,
respectively, while gain on disposal of property and equipment amounted to P
=0.53 million in 2012.
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- 36 Construction in-progress of FHI amounting to P
=6.72 million with percentage of completion of 15% as
at May 31, 2014 and 2013 mainly pertains to the ongoing renovation of various guest rooms in the
resort. Renovations are expected to be completed within six (6) months. Construction in-progress of
FPGI amounting to =
P223.48 million with percentage of completion of 85% as at May 31, 2014 and
2013 mainly pertains to the ongoing construction of Friday’s Puerto Galera Hotel and Resort in
Boquete Island, Puerto Galera. Management estimates that the construction will be completed early in
2015.
11. Other Noncurrent Assets - net
2013

2014
Flight equipment:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Allowance for impairment losses
Deposit for land acquisition (Note 19)
Land
Deposit for future stock subscription
Miscellaneous assets
Other noncurrent receivables
Allowance for impairment losses

P
=345,712,820
(167,060,643)
(178,652,177)
–
210,213,991
156,032,992
30,299,542
126,527,434
115,857,440
(167,788,655)
471,142,744
P
=471,142,744

P345,712,820
=
(167,060,643)
(178,652,177)
–
162,820,909
152,852,192
23,504,026
130,486,107
115,857,440
(167,788,655)
417,732,019
=417,732,019
P

Flight Equipment
The two aircrafts comprising the flight equipment of Askar previously leased out to GIA are now
idle as the lease agreement was no longer renewed due to the suspension of GIA’s operations in
2000 brought about by its operational and financial problems. Accordingly, a full valuation
allowance on the flight equipment was recognized.
Deposit for Land Acquisition
Deposit for land acquisition represents advances made for a planned purchase of a land located in
Moal Boal, Cebu. On January 10, 2010, FHI (buyer) entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
with Tri-Island Corporate Holdings, Inc. (TCHI, seller) to purchase parcels of land located in
Moal Boal, Cebu for a total consideration of =
P707.62 million. FHI intends to develop the parcels
of land into a boutique hotel to be known as Friday’s Moal Boal Beach Resort. The total
consideration shall be paid as follows:
· The total amount of =
P32.14 million representing deposits received by TCHI as of
June 30, 2009,
· The amount of =
P41.00 million to be paid on or before June 30, 2010, and
· The balance to be paid by FHI over a period of 10 years starting July 1, 2010
Upon payment of full consideration, TCHI will turn over possession of the subject properties to
FHI or its representative who may enter into the subject properties to survey its boundaries and to
secure the same against any unauthorized entry or other acts prejudicial to ownership and
possession, by posting guards and erecting parameter fence, among other things.
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Land pertains to costs of properties, the titles of which have not yet been granted to the Group.
On February 28, 2012, FHI and Altus Land Realty and Management Corporation executed a deed
of absolute sale of properties. One of the properties acquired is a parcel of land situated at Sitio
Pinaungon, Barangay Balabag, Boracay Island, Malay, Aklan. It was purchased for a total
consideration of =
P70.11 million.
Application for titling must await the resolution of the Supreme Court (SC) case questioning
Presidential Proclamation (PP) 1064 which aims to classify land in Boracay as agricultural and
forest land. By law, the whole Boracay was deemed part of public forest before its classification
through the said proclamation. However, possession of public forest lands cannot develop into
private ownership. Hence, classification of Boracay is a prerequisite to land titling.
On October 8, 2008, the SC upheld PP 1064 classifying Boracay Island into 400 hectares of
reserved forest land and 628.96 hectares of agricultural land, which is “alienable and disposable”.
With this in place, portion of the island has been opened to private ownership. Portion of the
island opened to private ownership includes the Group’s properties still awaiting for titling.
Pursuant to this, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) started the
cadastral survey of the island on August 10, 2009.
The survey will establish the boundaries of land ownership that will diffuse the problem of
property disputes among claimants in the island. It will also improve the efficiency of the
government for taxation purposes and make the properties financially viable instruments.
The cadastral survey will also allow the national government to delineate the protected areas for
conservation essential to the long-term sustainable development of Boracay.
The DENR has presented stakeholders three options:
·
·
·

Land titling through sales patent, where stakeholders would buy the property or land from the
government;
Judicial confirmation, where the court would simply acknowledge the stakeholders tax
declaration; and
Issuance of Forest Land Use Agreement for Tourism Purposes for properties in declared forest
lands.

The SC said under CA No. 141, the two requisites for judicial confirmation of imperfect or
incomplete title are:
·
·

Open, continuous, exclusive, and notorious possession and occupation of the subject land by
himself or through his predecessors-in-interest under a bona fide claim of ownership since
time immemorial; and
Classification of the land as alienable and disposable land of the public domain.

The Group’s parcels of land are located in the “alienable and disposable” area of the island as
generally defined in the PP 1064. Once the cadastral survey is finalized, the Group will proceed
with its land titling under the “judicial confirmation”.
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- 38 Management believes that the title to the land will be granted to Boracay landowners. Until such
time that the title is not transferred to the Group, deeds of absolute sale of the land will evidence
the Group’s right over the said property.
On February 14, 2014, 200 armed civilian men led by Mr. Datu Yap, son of the previous owner of
the land, barricaded a portion of FHI’s beach resort as an act of dishonoring the agreement
between the Company and his predecessor pertaining the transfer of ownership of the land upon
full payment. To counter this action, FHI filed a criminal case for usurpation of property as well as
a civil case for forcible entry with a TRO to remove the barricades built.
On July 18, 2014, an order was issued by the Municipal Trial Court of Buranga-Malay directing
Mr. Datu Yap to immediately vacate the property as well a cease and desist order from occupying
and further constructing any permanent structures and/or improvements on the subject property.
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription
Deposit for future stock subscription pertains to BHI’s deposit to Cala Paniman, Inc. (“CALA).
On August 19, 2011, the BHI planned to acquire 100% stake in CALA through a share salepurchase agreement. CALA is a corporation established on October 14, 2003, and engaged in the
business of developing and marketing of real estate in the Philippines. The Parent Company is
purchasing CALA as a vehicle for prospective joint ventures in the resort property sector, with the
right partners and completing synergies.
On September 6, 2011, BHI’s BOD approved the acquisition of 100% of CALA for
=
P100.00 million payable in seven (7) years, and a possible joint venture with a local or foreign
company for around ten (10) years. CALA is a corporation established on October 14, 2003, and
engaged in the business of developing and marketing of real estate in the Philippines. BHI is
purchasing CALA as a vehicle for prospective joint ventures in the resort property sector, with the
right partners and completing synergies.
On March 13, 2014, the BOD of BHI approved the purchase of CALA, Inc. for =
P3.00 million
payable within one (1) year. The Deeds of Assignment of Shares is now being processed for
execution. The execution of the Deeds of Assignment of Shares amends previous approval as
disclosed on September 6, 2011 on the plan to purchase the Company for =
P100.00 million payable
in seven (7) years.
As at May 31, 2014, BHI’s plan to acquire 100% stake in CALA has not yet been consummated.
BHI has deposits for future stock subscriptions for CALA’s common shares amounting to
P
=30.30 million and =
P23.50 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Miscellaneous Assets
Miscellaneous assets account includes conceptual planning cost and development planning cost
and other noncurrent assets which are provided with allowance for impairment losses amounting
to =
P51.93 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013.
Other Noncurrent Receivables
Other noncurrent receivables pertain to advances made under a joint venture agreement with
Hanoi Golden Lotus Hotel Company to form a joint venture company for the construction and
operation of a hotel and office building complex in Hanoi, Vietnam. However, on June 30, 1999,
the BOD of the Parent Company approved to wind up its investment in this project due to the
unfavorable market conditions in Vietnam. Accordingly, the carrying value of the investment has
been fully provided with an allowance for impairment loss.
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12. Trade and Other Payables
Trade
Guests’ deposits
Deposit for future stock subscription
Amounts owed to related parties (Note 19)
Government payables
Payable for land acquisition
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

2014
P
=38,757,422
28,359,692
23,686,509
17,323,862
17,294,236
5,354,223
39,632,370
P
=170,408,314

2013
=35,271,740
P
20,283,668
–
14,461,233
8,681,832
7,309,772
24,489,398
=110,497,643
P

Trade payables consist mainly of amounts due to supplier, with credit terms ranging from
fifteen (15) to thirty (30) days.
Guests’ deposits pertain to payments made for reservations which are generally nonrefundable
and are expected to be earned within one (1) year.
Deposit for future stock subscription pertains to capital funds received from a stockholder
intended for subscription of the Parent Company’s capital stock.
Government payables include expanded withholding taxes payable and salary-related government
payables payable within one month.
Payable for land acquisition consists of obligation for the purchase of land.
Accrued expenses and other liabilities include accrual for salaries and wages, professional fees,
unearned rentals and interests payable within one (1) month.
In 2014 and 2013, the Group recognized a gain amounting to nil and P
=7.22 million, respectively,
due to the reversal of long-outstanding payables and discount on accrued payables settlement.
FHI recognized a provision for deficiency for income taxes assessment amounting to nil,
P
=0.98 million and nil in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

13. Retirement Benefits Obligation
The Group has an unfunded, non-contributory retirement plan covering all its regular employees.
The plan provides for retirement, separation, disability and death benefits to its members. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to a percentage of final monthly salary for every year of
credited service. The latest independent actuarial valuation report as at June 30, 2014 for FHI is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

*SGVFS002969*

- 40 The following table summarizes the components of retirement benefits costs recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income:

2014
Charged to profit and loss:
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Charged to other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial loss - defined benefit obligation

2013
(As restated
- Note 2)

P
=1,162,300
589,650
1,751,950

=856,900
P
562,100
1,419,000

426,300
P
=2,178,250

2,048,620
=3,467,620
P

Retirement Benefits Costs

Current service cost
Interest cost on retirement benefit
obligation
Net actuarial loss

2014
P
=1,162,300

2013
(As restated Note 2)
=856,900
P

589,650
–
P
=1,751,950

562,100
–
=1,419,000
P

2012
=639,300
P
520,200
29,500
=1,189,000
P

Movements in the retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

Beginning balances
Retirement benefit costs
Actuarial loss (gain)
Ending balances

2014
P
=10,879,200
1,751,950
(3,238,664)
P
=9,392,486

2013
(As restated Note 2)
=8,851,200
P
1,419,000
609,000
=10,879,200
P

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Beginning balances
Actuarial loss (gain)
Current service cost
Interest cost
Ending balances

2014
P
=10,879,200
(3,238,664)
1,162,300
589,650
P
=9,392,486

2013
(As restated Note 2)
=8,851,200
P
609,000
856,900
562,100
=10,879,200
P
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benefit costs for the Group are as follows:
2013
5.42%
10.00%

2014
5.47%
10.00%

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

2012
8.89%
10.00%

Amounts for the current and previous five (5) years are as follows:
2013

2014
Present value of defined
benefit obligation
Unfunded obligation
Experience adjustment on plan
liabilities

2012

2011

2010

=10,879,200 P
=8,851,200 P
=5,851,200 P
=5,340,504
P
=9,392,486 P
9,392,486 10,879,200 8,851,200 5,851,200 5,340,504
(3,163,481)

(867,500)

1,046,900

896,400

(409,700)

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit liability
is as follows:
Assumptions
Discount rates
Rate of salary increase

Change in assumption increase (decrease)
+.05
-.05
+.05
-.05

Effect on defined
benefit liability
(P
=469,624)
=469,624
P
58,115
(58,115)

All other assumptions are held constant in determining the sensitivity results above.
The Company’s latest actuarial valuation report is as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013.
14. Revenues and Costs of Sales and Services
Revenues
Sales of Services
Rooms
Guest transfer
Commissions
Others
Sales of Goods
Food and beverage
Boutique

2014

2013

2012

P
=83,723,355
2,596,698
1,254,994
218,391
87,793,438

=83,895,033
P
2,067,266
1,003,841
216,969
87,183,109

=84,350,132
P
2,624,559
1,949,069
266,061
89,189,821

37,059,463
35,457,175
37,296,900
–
681,413
–
37,059,463
36,138,588
37,296,900
=124,242,572 P
=125,328,409
P
=125,090,338 P

*SGVFS002969*

- 42 Costs of Sales and Services
Food and beverage
Rooms
Property, operations and maintenance
Guest transfer
Depreciation (Notes 9 and 10)
Guest laundry
Boutique
Telephone and internet

2014
P
=30,580,271
10,081,173
6,831,339
4,194,264
3,412,538
761,802
–
–
P
=55,861,387

2013
=30,100,081
P
10,071,720
14,789,898
3,183,723
3,436,053
1,152,915
–
–
=62,734,390
P

2012
=28,342,211
P
11,765,710
18,589,043
4,062,285
1,725,414
1,695,354
134,449
500,004
=66,814,470
P

Rent expense presented under “room expenses” amounted to P
=2.50 million, =
P3.18 million and
P
=3.92 million as at May 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively (see Note 21).

15. General, Administrative and Selling

Personnel costs (Note 16)
Professional fees
Power, light and water
Management fees (Note 20)
Commissions
Depreciation (Notes 9 and 10)
Repairs and maintenance
Fees and licenses
Travel and transportation
Communications
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation (EAR)
Supplies
Insurance
Dues and subscription
Rentals (Note 20)
Advertising and promotion
Meetings and seminars
Write-off of receivables (Note 5)
Provision for impairment losses (Note 7)
Others

2014
P
=18,550,872
13,931,533
10,296,481
5,969,384
5,110,192
4,926,935
4,532,304
4,359,277
3,292,719
2,249,025
1,666,422
1,453,988
874,200
786,198
776,878
512,001
89,632
–
–
2,873,703
P
=82,251,744

2013
2012
(As restated - (As restated Note 2)
Note 2)
=15,560,298 P
P
=15,816,124
10,729,758
5,307,609
358,364
347,057
7,239,423
4,726,735
2,440,149
2,042,981
4,604,866
9,795,631
992,231
126,734
1,708,248
3,424,268
3,072,426
2,552,864
5,749,522
1,521,936
2,228,047
2,154,893
514,186
971,092
771,424
455,546
255,997
590,586
–
3,353,466
=63,750,522
P

3,845,452
3,535,521
394,372
1,654,446
768,964
1,108,740
99,943
6,382,163
1,801,758
3,310,151
=68,563,449
P

Others consist of provision for tax penalties, taxes and licenses and miscellaneous operating
expenses.
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16. Personnel Costs

2014
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits:
General, administrative and selling
(Note 15)
P
=18,550,872
Cost of sales and services
12,066,159
Retirement benefit cost (Notes 13)
1,751,950
P
=32,368,981

2013
(As restated Note 2)

2012

P
=15,560,298
14,603,711
1,419,000
=31,583,009
P

P
=15,816,124
13,305,887
1,189,000
=30,311,011
P

2013

2012

17. Income Taxes
2014
Current:
Regular corporate income tax
MCIT
Deferred

P
=1,651,459
10,633
(628,553)
P
=1,033,539

=6,913,182
P
9,623
(524,905)
=6,397,900
P

=3,580,412
P
128,633
(328,231)
=3,380,814
P

A reconciliation of provision for (benefit from) income tax computed at the effective statutory tax
rates to the provision for income tax in the consolidated statements of income follows:
Provision for (benefit from) income tax
Additions to (reductions in) income tax
resulting from:
Expired NOLCO
Nondeductible expense
Change in unrecognized deferred
income tax assets
Nondeductible EAR
Interest income subjected to final tax
Nondeductible interest expense

2014
(P
=3,830,247)
3,243,350
1,048,014
557,277
16,021
(876)

2013
=1,671,555
P

2012
(P
=543,456)

4,331,562
470,863

2,372,291
2,012,149

(156,508)
86,943
(6,515)

–

–

P
=1,033,539

=6,397,900
P

(845,021)
392,455
(12,129)
4,525
=3,380,814
P
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financial position are as follows:

2014
Deferred income tax assets:
Recognized directly in profit or loss:
Retirement benefit obligation
Accrued:
Rent expense
Interest expense
Documentary stamp tax (DST)
Allowance for impairment losses on trade
and other receivables
Recognized directly in other comprehensive income:
Retirement benefit obligation
Deferred income tax liability:
Recognized directly in profit or loss:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains

2013
(As restated Note 2)

P
=2,762,685

=2,237,100
P

265,792
132,821
34,640

265,792
132,821
34,640

55,775
3,251,713

55,775
2,726,128

55,061
3,306,774

1,026,660
3,752,788

(40,581)
P
=3,266,193

(143,549)
=3,609,239
P

No deferred income tax asset was set up on the following deductible temporary differences
because management believes that it is not probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Allowance for impairment losses on:
Trade and other receivables
Other noncurrent assets
NOLCO
Excess MCIT

2014

2013

P
=442,597,761
346,440,832
28,635,869
148,889
P
=817,823,351

=439,189,763
P
346,735,245
26,813,723
138,256
=812,876,987
P

As at May 31, 2014, the Group has NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
income and excess MCIT that can be used against future income tax payable as follows:
Taxable Year Ended
May 31, 2014
May 31, 2013
May 31, 2012

Expiry Date
June 1, 2017
June 1, 2016
June 1, 2015

NOLCO
P
=12,633,311
13,362,723
2,639,835
P
=28,635,869

Excess MCIT
=10,633
P
9,623
128,633
=148,889
P
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NOLCO:
2014
P
=26,813,723
12,633,311
(10,811,165)
P
=28,635,869

Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Expirations
Balances at end of year

2013
=27,889,540
P
13,362,723
(14,438,540)
=26,813,723
P

Excess MCIT:
2014
P
=138,256
10,633
P
=148,889

Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Balances at end of year

2013
=128,633
P
9,623
=138,256
P

18. Loss Per Share
Basic and diluted loss per share were computed as follows:
2014
P
=12,523,740

Net loss
Weighted average number
of common shares
Earnings loss per share

2013
=3,192,582
P

2012
=5,022,273
P

10,593,549,749 8,223,859,407 7,611,277,388
=
P0.0004
=0.0007
P
P
=0.0012

There were no common stock equivalents outstanding in 2014, 2013 and 2012 that would require
calculation of diluted earnings per share.

19. Related Party Disclosures
Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between and/or
among entities, which are under common control with the reporting enterprises and its key
management personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each related party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal
form. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. A summary of major transactions
and account balances with related parties follows:
Related Party

Relationship

Period

Amount/
Volume

Outstanding
Balances

2014
2013

P
=–
=
P–

P
=44,222,644
P
=44,222,644

Terms and Conditions

Amounts owed by related parties (Note 5)
Anglo-Asian
Holdings, Inc.
(AAHC)*

Under
Common
Control

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

(Forward)
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Volume

Outstanding
Balances

Amounts owed by related parties (Note 5)
Under
2014
Significant
2013
JP Guilds, Inc.
Influence

P
=–
=
P–

P
=30,961,794
P
=30,961,794

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;

2014
2013

–
–

12,057,537
12,057,537

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

2014
2013

308,036
–

308,036
–

2014
2013

–
–

–
4,831,979

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

2014
2013

–
–

–
3,575,783

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

2014
2013

–
–

–
1,531,287

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

2014
2013

–
–

–
633,350

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
impaired

2014
2013

89,600
63,402

13,605,065
14,195,561

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;
partially impaired

2014
2013

397,636
63,402

101,155,076
112,009,935

Related Party

Relationship

GIA*

Under
Common
Control

Anglo Asian
Strategic
Management,
Inc. (AASMI)

Under
Common
Control

Grand Boulevard
Hotel (GBH)*

Under
Common
Control

ATC*

Under
Common
Control

Avrion Systems. Inc.
(ASI)*

Under
Common
Control

Philippine Village
Hotel (PVH)*

Under
Common
Control

Others**

Under
Common
Control

Period

Terms and Conditions

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;

Allowance for
2014
–
(56,280,181)
impairment losses
2013
–
(67,532,676)
Totals
2014
P
=397,636
P
=44,874,895
Totals
2013
P
=63,402
P
=44,477,259
*with full allowance
**with allowance amounting to nil and =
P680,096 as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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Related Party

Relationship

Period

Amounts owed to related parties (Note 12)
Under
2014
Common
2013
AASMI
Control

JP Guilds, Inc.

CALA
Totals
Totals

Outstanding
Balances

P
=–
=
P–

P
=7,764,042
P
=5,348,367

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured

Terms and Conditions

Under
Common
Control

2014
2013

–
2,514,020

9,112,866
9,112,866

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;

Under
Common
Control

2014
2013

446,954
–

446,954
–

Short-term noninterestbearing advances; due and
demandable; unsecured;

2014
2013

P
=–
P
=2,514,020

P
=17,323,862
P
=14,461,233

2014
2013

P
=5,969,384
P
=7,239,423

P
=5,969,384
=
P–

Period

Amount/
Volume

Outstanding
Balances

2014
2013

P
=6,795,516
P
=23,504,026

P
=30,299,542
P
=23,504,026

Services Availed from a related party
Anglo Asian
Under
Management, Inc.
Common
(AASMI)
Control

Related Party

Amount/
Volume

Relationship

Deposits for Future Subscription
CALA
Subsidiary

Management fee

Terms and Conditions
Investment

Fully impaired due from related parties written-off amounted to P
=11.25 million and nil in 2014
and 2013, respectively.
All of the above related parties are under common management and ownership as the Group. The
significant transactions with related parties included the following:
·

On April 18, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a Deed of Assignment to sell, transfer
and convey its AFS financial assets to JP Guilds, Inc., which is payable within a year. JP
Guilds, Inc. is the majority owner of the Parent Company (see Note 8);

·

Management services from AASMI (see Note 20); and

·

Receivables from related parties which consist mainly of noninterest-bearing balances due
from these related parties for working capital requirements and other advances which are due
and demandable anytime. AAHC, GIA, GBH, ATC, ASI and PVH had already ceased
operations and as such, the related receivables were provided with full valuation allowance.

·

On January 10, 2010, FHI entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with Tri-Island
Corporate Holdings, Inc. (TCHI), a company under common control, to purchase parcels of
land located in Moal Boal, Cebu for a total consideration of =
P707.62 million. FHI intends to
develop the parcels of land into a boutique hotel to be known as Friday’s Moal Boal Beach
Resort.
As at May 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of deposit for land acquisition amounted to
P
=210.21 million and =
P162.82 million, respectively (see Note 11).

*SGVFS002969*

- 48 Compensation of key management personnel
The Group considers its chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, corporate secretary, and vice president
for finance as key management personnel. The compensation of key management personnel of the
Group follows:
2014
P
=1,971,000
704,667
P
=2,675,667

Salaries and wages
Other employee benefits

2013
=2,998,444
P
747,778
=3,746,222
P

20. Agreements and Commitments
a. The Parent Company entered into a management agreement with AASMI on
December 28, 2006 to render certain management services. Under the terms of the agreement,
AASMI shall supervise, direct and control the management and operation of the business,
assets and other affairs of the Parent Company for a fee based on certain percentages of the
Parent Company’s gross income, gross operating profit and net income. The agreement shall
continue for five (5) years, subject to renewals or extensions on terms as may be mutually
agreed upon by the parties. This was subsequently renewed on December 28, 2011 for
another five (5) years.
On May 3, 2006, FHI also entered into a management agreement with AASMI. The
agreement contains substantially the same provisions as that of the Parent Company. The
agreement shall continue for five (5) years, subject to renewals or extensions on terms as may
be mutually agreed upon by the parties. This was subsequently renewed on May 3, 2011, for
another five (5) years.
b. FHI leases its office premises in Makati and part of its resort premises in Boracay from third
parties. Lease terms are non-cancellable and usually cover one (1) to ten (10) years with an
annual escalation fee of ten percent (10%). The future minimum annual rental commitments
under the lease are as follows:
Within one (1) year
After one (1) year but not more than
five (5) years
More than five (5) years

2014
P
=924,929

2013
=887,438
P

2012
=863,245
P

1,902,373
–
P
=2,827,302

1,823,748
471,590
=3,182,776
P

2,989,700
994,625
=4,847,570
P

2014
P
=2,503,824

2013
=3,184,539
P

2012
=3,920,097
P

776,878
P
=3,280,702

771,424
=3,955,963
P

768,964
=4,689,061
P

Rent expense was distributed as follows:
Cost of sales (Note 14)
General and administrative
expenses (Note 15)

*SGVFS002969*

- 49 c. The Parent Company entered into lease agreements with various lessees for the use of the
Parent Company’s condominium units. The lease contracts are for a period of six (6)
months, renewable depending on the agreement of the contracting parties. Total rental income
earned from these assets amounted to =
P0.89 million, =
P0.89 million and =
P0.80 million in 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.
The future minimum leases collectible within six (6) months for the operating lease amounted
to =
P0.41 million and =
P0.40 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
d. On June 9, 2012, the Parent Company and CALA, jointly signed a contract with Jones Lang
LaSalle (Philippines), Inc. as Marketing Advisor. The contract involves the exclusive
marketing of Puerto Azul properties to attract and engage qualified partners and investors who
will expand and develop Puerto Azul in cooperation with, and under the terms and conditions
acceptable to the Parent Company and CALA. This covers an area of approximately 3,000
hectares located in the municipality of Ternate, Province of Cavite, Philippines.

21. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Capital Management
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The main purpose of the Group’s financial instruments is to fund its operations. The Group’s
principal financial instruments arising from operations consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, other noncurrent receivables under “Other noncurrent assets”, and trade and
other payables. The main risks from the use of financial instruments are liquidity and credit risk.
The Group does not have foreign currency risk because of minimal monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency both for 2014 and 2013. Similarly, the Group does not have
interest rate risk because it has no contracts with variable interest rates.
The Group’s BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and these
are summarized below:
Liquidity Risk
In the management of liquidity, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
May 31, 2014 and 2013 based on contractual and undiscounted payments.
2014
Financial Liability:
Loans and Borrowings
Trade and other payables

On demand

Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

P
= 27,330,265

P
= 66,139,010

P
=–

More than
5years
P
=–

Total
P
=93,469,275

*SGVFS002969*

- 50 2013
Financial Liabilities:
Loans and Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Obligations under
operating lease

More than 5
years

On demand

Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

Total

P
=14,461,232

P
=67,070,911

=
P–

P
=–

=
P81,532,143

–
P
=14,461,232

–
P
=67,070,911

1,823,748
P
=1,823,748

471,590
P
=471,590

2,295,338
P
=83,827,481

The table below summarizes the maturity of the Group’s financial assets held for liquidity
purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at May 31, 2014
and 2013.
2014
On demand
Financial Assets:
Loans and Receivables
Cash
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by
related parties
Others

Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than
5 years

Total

P
=2,480,684

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=2,480,684

1,915,153

–

–

–

1,915,153

44,874,895
–

–
1,211,228

–
–

–
–

44,874,895
1,211,228

P
=49,270,732

P
=1,211,228

P
=–

P
=–

P
=50,481,960

2013
On demand
Financial Assets:
Loans and Receivables
Cash
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by
related parties
Others

Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than
5 years

Total

P
=8,239,553

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

P
=8,239,553

933,049

–

–

–

933,049

44,291,342
–

–
1,321,461

–
–

–
–

44,291,342
1,321,461

P
=53,463,944

P
=1,321,461

=
P–

P
=–

=
P54,785,405

Credit Risk
The Group establishes credit limits at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship
and industry sector.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant. Provision for impairment losses on receivables will also be made
if the situation so warrants subject to the BOD’s review and approval.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of
counter-parties having similar characteristics. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
equals the carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets.
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- 51 The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets based on the Group’s credit
rating system:
2014
Loans and Receivables
Cash in banks
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by related
parties
Others
Other noncurrent receivables
under “Other noncurrent
assets”

High

Medium

Low

Impaired

Total

P
=1,155,117

P
=–

P
=–

P
=1,155,117

1,915,153

–

P
=–
–
–

342,829,287

344,744,440

–
1,211,228

44,874,895
–

–
–

56,280,181
43,674,211

101,155,076
44,885,439

–
P
=4,281,498

–
P
=44,874,895

–
P
=–

High

Medium

Low

Impaired

Total

P
=7,164,547

=
P–

=
P–

P
=7,164,547

747,131
–
1,321,462

–
44,477,259
–

=
P–
–
–
–
–

329,826,202
67,532,676
42,016,803

330,573,333
112,009,935
43,338,265

–
P
=9,233,140

–
P
=44,477,259

– 115,857,440
P
=– P
=555,233,121

115,857,440
P
=608,943,520

115,857,440 115,857,440
P
=558,641,119 P
=491,940,072

2013
Loans and Receivables
Cash in banks
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by related parties
Others
Other noncurrent receivables under
“Other noncurrent assets”

The Group evaluates credit quality on the basis of the credit strength of the security and or
counterparty/issuer. High quality receivables pertain to receivables from parties with favorable
credit standing. Receivables from related parties that slide beyond the credit terms but pay a week
after the due date being past due are classified under medium quality. Low quality receivables are
accounts from related parties which are past due for ninety (90) days or more.
The tables below show the aging analyses of past due but not impaired receivables per class that
the Group held as at May 31, 2014 and 2013. A financial asset is past due when a counterparty
has failed to make payment when contractually due.
2014

Loans and Receivables
Cash
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by
related parties
Others
Other noncurrent
receivables

Neither past
due nor
impaired

Less than 30

Past due but not impaired
61 to 90
31 to 60 days
days

More than
91 days

Individually
Impaired

Total

P
= 1,155,117

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

P
= 1,155,117

1,915,153

–

–

–

–

342,829,287

344,744,440

44,874,895
1,896

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

56,280,181
43,674,211

101,155,076
43,676,107

–
P
= 47,947,061

–
=
P–

–
=
P–

–
=
P–

–
P
=–

115,857,440
P
= 558,641,119

115,857,440
P
= 606,588,180
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Neither past
due nor
impaired

Loans and Receivables
Cash
Receivables
Trade
Amounts owed by
related parties
Others
Other noncurrent
receivables

Less than 30

Past due but not impaired
61 to 90
31 to 60 days
days
=
P–

More than
91 days

Individually
Impaired

Total

=
P–

=
P–

P
=7,164,547

–

329,826,202

330,573,333

P
=7,164,547

=
P–

=
P–

747,131

–

44,477,259
1,088

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

67,532,675
42,016,804

112,009,934
42,017,892

–
=
P52,390,025

–
=
P–

–
=
P–

–
=
P–

–
=
P–

115,857,440
=
P555,233,121

115,857,440
=
P607,623,146

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The historical cost carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets amounting to
P
=50.48 million and =
P54.79 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and financial
liabilities amounting to =
P93.50 million and P
=84.71 million as at May 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, are all subject to normal credit terms, and are short-term in nature, and approximate
their fair values.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business, pay existing obligations and maximize shareholder
value. The Group is also committed to create long term value by increasing its capitalization,
entering into joint ventures for tourist destination development, and commanding a significant
share in the primary resort home market outside Metro Manila, especially with current
decongestion efforts to improve travel time via ongoing highway construction projects.
The Group manages capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust capital, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended May 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
The following table pertains to the account balances the Group considers as its core economic
capital.
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

2014
P
=851,313,026
612,094,337
19,736,804
P
=1,483,144,167

2013
=878,389,356
P
505,566,933
32,260,544
=1,416,216,833
P

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

22. Segment Reporting
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
services provided and the different markets served, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit.
The Group’s reportable segments in 2014, 2013 and 2012 are hospitality and leisure and
investment holding.
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- 53 Hospitality and Leisure - primarily engaged in delivering quality service and hospitality through
world-class accommodations, room amenities and offers wide range of cuisine. Revenues
principally come from room occupancy. Its rooms are all distinctly native with Filipino stylingquaint yet with modern conveniences. In addition, the food and beverage also contributes to its
increase in revenue as it is known in the island for its excellent selection of food.
Investment Holding - primarily engaged in the holding of investment properties and companies in
the hospitality and leisure industry.
2014
Sales of products and services
Income tax expense
Net income
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expense
Capital expenditure
Total assets
Total liabilities

Holding
Company
=–
P
10,633
10,843,942
2,722,110
1,520
9,608
1,433,430
1,519,667,811
43,187,728

Hospitality
and Leisure
=125,090,338
P
1,022,906
2,957,085
263,345
1,398
–
75,183,722
811,236,436
327,716,095

Total
=125,090,338
P
1,033,539
13,801,027
2,985,455
2,918
9,608
76,617,152
2,330,904,247
370,903,823

Holding
Company
=–
P
9,623
12,857,644
2,586,627
18,898
–
165,553
991,610,167
21,747,616

Hospitality
and Leisure
=124,242,572
P
6,388,277
(12,031,590)
5,454,292
2,820
388,137
155,684,306
680,272,066
107,116,384

Total
=124,242,572
P
6,397,900
826,054
8,040,919
21,718
388,137
155,849,859
1,671,882,233
128,864,000

Holding
Company

Hospitality
and Leisure

Total

2013
Sales of products and services
Income tax expense
Net income (loss)
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expense
Capital expenditure
Total assets
Total liabilities

2012

Sales of products and services
Income tax expense
Net loss
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expense
Capital expenditure
Total assets
Total liabilities

=
P–
128,633
(4,925,416)
2,757,628
36,562
29,541
549,442
1,257,620,903
71,270,565

P
=125,328,409
3,252,181
(266,918)
8,763,417
3,867
–
18,881,503
313,605,437
105,789,225

P
=125,328,409
3,380,814
(5,192,334)
11,521,045
40,429
29,541
19,430,945
1,571,226,340
177,059,790
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23. Equity
The following are the movements in the number of subscribed and issued shares of stock:
2014
Number
of shares
Issued and subscribed shares at
beginning of the year
Subscribed on December 12, 2013
Issued and subscribed shares at
end of the year

Additional paidin capital, net of
Capital stock transaction cost

9,833,893,557
2,166,106,443

P
=983,389,356
216,610,644

P
=505,566,933
106,527,404

12,000,000,000

P
=1,200,000,000

P
=612,094,337

2013
Number
of shares
Issued and subscribed shares at
beginning of the year
Issued on October 25, 2012
Issued on May 31, 2013
Subscribed on May 31, 2013
Issued and subscribed shares at end
of the year

Additional paid-in
capital, net of
transaction cost
Capital stock

7,966,853,408
466,853,408
466,853,408
933,333,333

P
=796,685,341
46,685,341
46,685,341
93,333,333

P
=352,890,692
52,694,915
53,314,659
46,666,667

9,833,893,557

P
=983,389,356

P
=505,566,933

On February 14, 2012, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the plan to increase the authorized
capital stock of the Parent Company from P
=800.00 million divided into 8 billion shares at par
value of =
P0.10 per share to =
P1.20 billion divided into 12 billion shares at par value of =
P0.10 per
share. On February 28, 2012, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock.
Also on February 28, 2012, JP Guilds, Inc. subscribed to 466,853,408 shares at a price of =
P0.2142
per share in exchange for cash amounting to =
P100.00 million, which represents the first tranche of
the =
P300 million subscription agreement of the Parent Company with JP Guilds, Inc. These shares
were approved for listing by the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) on June 1, 2012.
On October 25, 2012 and May 31, 2013, JP Guilds, Inc. fully funded the second and third tranche
of the subscription agreement, respectively, worth =
P100.0 million equivalent to 466,853,408
shares at =
P0.2142 per share for each tranche. These were settled partly through cash amounting to
P
=153.61 million and partly through the conversion of the deposit for future stock subscription
amounting to P
=46.39 million.
During the special meeting held on December 6, 2012, the BOD approved the amendment of the
Articles of Incorporation to remove the pre-emptive rights of the stockholders. The same was
approved by the stockholders during the annual stockholders meeting which followed thereafter.
As at May 31, 2013, the Parent Company has yet to file the amendment with the SEC.
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- 55 On February 14, 2013, during the special meeting of the BOD of the Parent Company, the
following were approved:
a) Subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. to 3,099,439,776 unissued shares of the Parent Company
worth P
=464.92 million at subscription price of =
P0.15 per share based on the last 5 trading
days average price of =
P0.1316 per share plus premium of 13.98%.
On May 31, 2013, JP Guilds, Inc., subscribed to 933,333,333 common shares amounting to
=
P140.00 million, representing the first tranche of the subscription agreement. Of this
amount, =
P105.00 million remains to be subscription receivable as May 31, 2014.
On December 12, 2013, JP Guilds, Inc., subscribed to 2,166,106,443 common shares
amounting to =
P324.92 million, representing the second up to the fifth tranches of the
subscription agreement. Of this amount, P
=243.69 million remains to be subscription
receivable as at May 31, 2014.
Total subscription receivables amounted to P
=348.69 million as at May 31, 2014.
b) Increase in authorized capital stock of the Parent Company from P
=1.20 billion divided into
12.00 billion shares at par value of =
P0.10 per share to P
=1.70 billion divided into 17.00 billion
shares at par value of =
P0.10 per share.
The increase in authorized capital stock was previously approved by the stockholders during
the annual stockholders’ meeting on November 19, 2010, allowing an increase up to an
amount to be determined by the BOD not exceeding P
=2.80 billion divided into 28.00 billion
shares at par value of =
P0.10 per share.
As at May 31, 2014, the increase in authorized capital stock has yet to be filed with the SEC.
c) Subscription by JP Guilds, Inc. to 25% of the new common shares of the Corporation to be
taken from the increase in authorized capital stock, equivalent to 1.25 billion common shares
at the subscription price of =
P0.15 per share.
Transaction costs including documentary stamp tax and filling fees for the issuance and increase in
capital stock, respectively, amounted to P
=1.78 million, P
=0.62 million and =
P0.42 million in 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

24. Contingencies
The Group is a party to certain legal and other proceedings and claims, the amounts of which
cannot be reasonably estimated. Management, in consultation with its legal counsels, believes that
the ultimate resolution of these legal and other proceedings and claims would not have material
effects on the Group’s financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of strategies relating to these legal and other proceedings and claims.
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25. Other Matters
Certain accounts in the 2013 financial statements were reclassified to conform with the 2014
presentation.

26. Supplementary Disclosure to Statements of Cash Flows
In 2013, the non-cash financing activity of the Group pertains to the conversion of
P
=46.39 million deposits for future stock subscription to P
=21.66 million common stock and
P
=24.73 million additional paid-in capital.
In 2012, the non-cash investing activity of the Group pertains to the assignment the Parent
Company’s AFS financial assets to JP Guilds, Inc. The Parent Company recognized
=
P30.96 million receivable from JP Guilds, Inc. while it derecognized its AFS financial assets
amounting to =
P2.29 million together with the unrealized valuation loss amounting to
=
P28.68 million.
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